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 1                            PROCEEDINGS:

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Let's be on

 3   the record.  It's Wednesday morning, a little after 9:30,

 4   second day of our hearing in Docket TR-130499.  We finished

 5   the City of Kennewick and City of Richland's case-in-chief

 6   yesterday, and I think we're ready to move on to commission

 7   staff.

 8                   MR. SMITH:  Yes, Your Honor.  We call Kathy

 9   Hunter.

10                          KATHY HUNTER

11   called as a witness by the Petitioner, being first duly sworn

12   to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

13   was examined and testified as follows:

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

15   Have a seat, please.  State and spell your first and last name

16   for the court reporter.

17                   THE WITNESS:  Kathy, K-a-t-h-y, Hunter,

18   H-u-n-t-e-r.

19   

20   

21                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

22   

23   BY MR. SMITH:

24        Q.     Ms. Hunter, where are you employed and in what

25   capacity?
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 1        A.     I work at the Washington Utilities &

 2   Transportation Commission.  I'm the deputy assistant director

 3   of transportation safety.

 4        Q.     And do you have before you what's been marked as

 5   Exhibit KH-1T?

 6        A.     I do.

 7        Q.     And do you recognize that as your pre-filed

 8   testimony in this matter?

 9        A.     Yes, I do.

10        Q.     You also have before you what has been marked for

11   identification as KH-2 through KH-12?

12        A.     Yes, I do.

13        Q.     And are those exhibits referred to in your Direct

14   testimony?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     Do you have any changes or corrections to make

17   today, either to your testimony or the exhibits?

18        A.     I do not.

19                   MR. SMITH:  Your Honor, Ms. Hunter is

20   available for cross-examination.

21                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit?

22   

23   

24   

25   
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 1                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. PETIT:

 4        Q.     Good morning.

 5        A.     Good morning.

 6        Q.     You do have that binder with your pre-filed

 7   testimony in front of you?

 8        A.     I do.

 9        Q.     Okay.  Because I'm going to be referring to it.

10   And I'll give you the pages that I'm going to ask you

11   questions.

12        A.     Okay.

13        Q.     First of all, if you could turn to page 9 of your

14   testimony.   You there discuss and cite testimony, written

15   testimony, pre-filed testimony, by Mr. Peters, Mr. Simon, Mr.

16   Deskins, Ms. Grabler, and Mr. Jeffers, correct?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     Now, in connection with the statements made there,

19   did you conduct any independent investigation to ascertain the

20   truth or accuracy of those statements?

21        A.     I did not.

22        Q.     If you could turn to, then, page 10, I'd like to

23   direct your attention to lines 9 through 16, where you address

24   Mr. Jeffers' pre-filed testimony regarding alternatives to an

25   at-grade crossing.
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 1               Do you have that in front of you?

 2        A.     I do.

 3        Q.     All right.  Now, you also heard Mr. Jeffers

 4   testify yesterday, correct?

 5        A.     Yes.

 6        Q.     And did you understand from his testimony that he

 7   did not create the designs that were evaluated as

 8   alternatives?

 9                   MR. DIJULIO:  Objection, form and also

10   foundation.

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Sustained.

12   We'll let you warm up and rephrase this morning.

13                   MR. PETIT:  All right.

14        Q.     Do you know who prepared the schematics and the

15   drawings for the various alternatives that Mr. Jeffers

16   addressed?

17        A.     I believe it was either the city or the other

18   consultant in the case.

19        Q.     Do you know which?

20        A.     I believe it was city.

21        Q.     In fact, Mr. Jeffers testified it was the city,

22   correct?

23        A.     From what I can recall, yes.

24        Q.     Okay.  To your knowledge, has any independent

25   engineering firms reviewed those designs to ascertain that
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 1   they are the only available or reasonable options to an

 2   at-grade crossing in this location?

 3        A.     No.

 4        Q.     I'd like for you to turn to page 12 of your

 5   pre-filed testimony, please.  Lines 6 through 9.  First of

 6   all, you state that you offer no testimony about the cost of

 7   constructing a grade-separated crossing, correct?

 8        A.     Correct.

 9        Q.     But you agree with the opinion expressed in

10   various testimony that because of the topography of the land

11   and the operations of the railroad at this location, a grade-

12   separated design would be impracticable.

13               Do you see that?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     Okay.  Now, first, let's take those one at a time.

16   In connection with the topography of the land, do you rely on

17   the testimony of others in that regard to arrive at your

18   conclusion?

19        A.     I do.

20        Q.     Now, you also make reference to the operations of

21   the railroad at this location.  What are you referring to by

22   the operations of the railroad?

23        A.     I believe I was referring to the switching that

24   can take place over that siding, that passing track that's

25   mentioned.
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 1        Q.     And what did you examine or review or evaluate

 2   concerning the switching on the passing track at that

 3   location?

 4        A.     I believe there was some discussion at the

 5   diagnostic meeting, although the railroad was not present at

 6   that meeting, about how potentially switching might occur at

 7   that location.

 8        Q.     So you understood that switching would occur if

 9   that siding track were left in place?

10                   MR. DIJULIO:  Your Honor, I'm going to

11   interpose an objection.  There's a fact not in evidence that

12   continues to be part of the examination questions regarding

13   passing track.  I don't believe there is any evidence in the

14   record regarding the siding being a, quote, "passing," closed

15   quote, track.  And the continued reference to passing track as

16   opposed to simply what it is, a siding or whatever else you

17   want to call it, switching track, as the record has

18   demonstrated from the rest of the record, would provide this.

19   Again, nothing in the record demonstrates that this has been

20   used for passing.

21                   MR. PETIT:  If I might respond, Your Honor?  I

22   guarantee we will tie this up.  So for the purposes of talking

23   about this today, we will provide testimony in our

24   case-in-chief demonstrating that this track not only has been

25   used, continues to be used, but will be used in the future as
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 1   a passing track.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Anything

 3   further?

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Nothing further.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm going to

 6   allow the continued reference, and I thank you for noting that

 7   there's no formal testimony.  If the record does not later or

 8   any development as to the actual use of the track now or in

 9   the future, we will leave that as a point in the briefs, but I

10   won't draw any conclusions from it at this time.

11               If there's a confusing point to the witness,

12   though, as to the reference, then I'll allow the witness to

13   respond accordingly that they're not sure what you're

14   referring to.  But I do think we're all on the same page,

15   that's it's the second track that spurs off for about, at

16   least, I think 3700 feet is what we talked about yesterday.

17                   MR. PETIT:  Correct.

18        Q.     And you understood what I was referring to as the

19   passing track, that I'm talking about a second track at this

20   location which has switches that connect back to the main

21   track at two different locations?

22        A.     Correct.

23                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not sure

25   the question ever got answered.  We had the objection
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 1   interposed as to the correct --

 2                   MR. PETIT:  Right.

 3                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  -- naming and

 4   reference, but the question, I believe, Ms. Hunter, posed to

 5   you was whether you assumed that switching operations were

 6   going to take place on that stretch of track, when you made

 7   this testimony.

 8                   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  And I think that I

 9   referred back to discussion at the diagnostic, with the

10   participants at that meeting.  We were discussing the

11   potential of the railroad operations at that location and the

12   impact if a crossing was constructed at Center Parkway.

13        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  Now, is it your recommendation,

14   ultimately, that the crossing be allowed, whether that passing

15   track remains in place or not?

16        A.     Yes.  My testimony is based on including that

17   second track at the crossing.

18        Q.     And did you independently evaluate the effect of

19   that -- those switching operations on this passing track in

20   connection with the safety of this proposed crossing?

21        A.     Based on my experience, I have just a general

22   sense of what switching operations -- the impact on the

23   crossing might be of switching operations.  So that, coupled

24   with the discussion at the diagnostic meeting, I felt that the

25   warning devices that are proposed by the city at the Center
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 1   Parkway crossing could accommodate the switching operations

 2   without compromising safety.

 3        Q.     You had no input from the BNSF in that regard, did

 4   you?

 5        A.     No.

 6        Q.     The BNSF uses this track every day; you're aware

 7   of that, correct?

 8        A.     I am.

 9        Q.     And you had no input from the Union Pacific

10   Railroad on this issue, either?

11        A.     Correct.

12        Q.     And you've stated, I believe, that at the

13   diagnostic meeting, TCRY was invited, but no representative

14   appeared, is that true?

15        A.     There was no representative at the meeting.

16        Q.     You don't --

17        A.     I did not arrange the meeting.

18                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

19        Q.     Okay.  Now, I'd like you to turn to page 13 of

20   your testimony, please.  And could we have -- excuse me.

21   First of all, I'm going to hand you an excerpt from the

22   petition, which is the plan for the crossing.

23                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

24        Q.     Do you have the crossing plan?  Yeah, that's the

25   right one.  Thank you.  So what I understand from your
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 1   testimony is that whether the crossing is designed according

 2   to this plan -- well, let me back up a second.

 3               This particular plan, which is part of the

 4   petition, would call for the elimination of the passing track,

 5   correct?

 6        A.     Correct.

 7        Q.     And there's a second alternative which we have in

 8   evidence as KJ-13.  I'm going to hand you -- it's KJ-13-X,

 9   which I'm going to hand you.  And attached to this drawing --

10   or, I'm sorry, attached to KJ-13-X, there's another schematic

11   prepared by Mr. Jeffers that shows a crossing accommodating

12   two tracks, correct?

13        A.     Yes.

14        Q.     So as I understand it from your testimony, you, as

15   UTC staff, are recommending the approval of the crossing,

16   whether it's designed according to the initial plan that would

17   eliminate one track, the passing track, or according to this

18   revised plan that would leave the passing track in place, is

19   that right?

20        A.     Yes.

21        Q.     Now, you recognize that the existence of the

22   passing track causes some problems at this crossing location,

23   right?

24        A.     Some challenges, yes.

25        Q.     Did you conduct any kind of examination as to how
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 1   frequently trains today utilize the passing track?

 2        A.     No.  What I used was the information provided in

 3   the petition that presented the rail traffic as two to four

 4   trips a day.

 5        Q.     You understand that today two different railroads

 6   operate on this track?

 7        A.     Yes, I do.

 8        Q.     BN and TCRY?

 9        A.     Yes.

10        Q.     And you did not conduct an investigation or an

11   examination of how frequently those railroads are required to

12   use this passing track in order to accommodate each other's

13   operations?

14        A.     No.  The information presented in the petition was

15   a total of the number of trips over the crossing, not a

16   breakdown by passing track or main line.

17        Q.     Can we go back to -- no, let's leave this one up.

18   If you could direct your attention to the drawing that's part

19   of KJ-13-X, which is the drawing that shows the schematic of a

20   crossing with two tracks, a passing track and the main track.

21               Do you have that in front of you?

22        A.     I do.

23        Q.     Okay.  And in connection with that track

24   configuration and that crossing configuration, there will

25   potentially be times when there is a train on each of those
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 1   tracks, correct?

 2        A.     Potentially, yes.

 3        Q.     Okay.  And so wouldn't it be fair to say that in

 4   connection with the safety of this crossing, that that

 5   situation would have some impact on whether or not this

 6   crossing was safe?

 7        A.     If there were two trains occupying the crossing at

 8   the same time?

 9        Q.     If there were two trains, not necessarily

10   occupying the crossing at the same time, but had to utilize

11   the crossing, say, in sequence, one train coming through on

12   the main line, another one waiting on the passing track to go

13   the other direction and then utilizing the crossing, utilizing

14   the track to get back on the main line.

15        A.     Would there be an impact of safety is what you're

16   asking me?

17        Q.     Yes.

18        A.     Well, the active warning devices would be engaged,

19   providing protection for the traveling public, to isolate them

20   from crossing over the crossing.  So is safety compromised or

21   is it lessened by the activity of two trains?  The warning

22   devices are going to activate whether there's one train or two

23   trains.

24        Q.     Sure.  And I'm not quarrelling with that.  What

25   I'm suggesting to you is that a situation could arise, and you
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 1   can see a situation arising, where one train would cross those

 2   tracks, trigger the signal, clear the signal, the signal would

 3   go up, and then the other train would immediately trigger the

 4   signal.

 5               You're aware of that kind of situation, correct?

 6        A.     That scenario, yes.

 7        Q.     Yes.  And did you take that in consideration in

 8   your determination to recommend this crossing, even if it

 9   crossed both tracks?

10        A.     Yes.  I feel that the warning devices would be

11   adequate to provide notice to the public that there was an

12   oncoming train, whether it be from the main line or the

13   passing track.

14        Q.     If you would turn to page 13 of your testimony,

15   you make reference there to sight lines, sight distances, and

16   in particular, the WSDOT design manual that addresses sight

17   distances.

18               Do you see that?  Lines --

19        A.     Are you on line 13 --

20        Q.     -- 13 through 20.

21        A.     Okay.  Yes.

22        Q.     Did you make any attempt to evaluate the sight

23   distance that would be available if there were a train on the

24   passing track at a time when another train came through on the

25   main track?
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 1        A.     I did not.

 2        Q.     Would you agree with me that there was potential

 3   obstruction of the sight distance if there is a train on the

 4   passing track while another train is coming through on the

 5   main track?

 6        A.     Yes.  But, again, I think the active warning

 7   devices address that type of sight distance challenge that a

 8   train can present while parked on the siding track or passing

 9   track.

10        Q.     I understand.  But you felt it important to

11   address the sight distance issue in your testimony that you

12   filed before this commission, correct?

13        A.     That's correct.

14        Q.     And that testimony did not take into

15   consideration, as part of the sight distance, the scenario we

16   just talked about with a train on the passing track and

17   another one on the main track.

18        A.     That is correct.

19                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

20        Q.     Now, if you would turn to page 17 of your

21   testimony, please.  I'm going to direct your attention to the

22   testimony that starts on line 16 of page 17 and continues on

23   to page 18 and 19, where you make reference to response times,

24   emergency response times.

25               Do you have that testimony in mind?
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 1        A.     I have it in front of me.

 2        Q.     Okay.  Again, you rely upon the testimony of Chief

 3   Baynes, Mr. Skinner, Chief -- Mr. Simon, Chief Hines, Mr.

 4   Deskins, and Chief Hohenberg, correct?

 5        A.     Correct.

 6        Q.     As well as the JUB report, the J-U-B report,

 7   correct?

 8        A.     Correct.

 9        Q.     And you made no independent evaluation of the

10   accuracy of any of those conclusions stated in that testimony

11   or that report?

12        A.     No, I relied on the expert testimony of these

13   witnesses.

14                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

15        Q.     If you could turn to page 24 of your testimony,

16   please.  In particular, I'm going to direct your attention to

17   lines 13 through 19, where we -- you again address the issue

18   of how many tracks this crossing is going to traverse,

19   correct?

20        A.     Correct.

21        Q.     And there's reference there to the City of

22   Kennewick concluding that the siding track will likely be

23   removed.  Do you see that?

24        A.     I do.

25        Q.     However, the railroad, TCRY, states it "actively
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 1   uses the siding track and will continue to do so in the

 2   future."

 3               Do you see that?

 4        A.     I do.

 5        Q.     Now, this is the track that we're referring to,

 6   I've been referring to, as the passing track, which has two

 7   tracks at the location of the proposed crossing, one track

 8   that leaves the main track, goes over the crossing, and joins

 9   the main track again, correct?

10        A.     Correct.

11        Q.     That's what you understand this reference to be?

12        A.     As the passing track.

13        Q.     Yes.  Now, you say here that the track belongs to

14   the Port of Benton, and it is the Port of Benton's decision

15   whether the track remains.

16               Do you see that?

17        A.     I do.

18        Q.     What did you base that conclusion on?

19        A.     I base that on the data request responses that

20   staff received in conjunction with this case.

21        Q.     Which specific response did you have in mind?

22        A.     I believe it was the ones provided by the Port of

23   Benton.

24        Q.     And is it your testimony that the Port of Benton

25   asserted that it could decide to remove that track if they
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 1   wanted to?

 2        A.     I believe that their data requested that they had

 3   no intent of removing that track at this time.

 4        Q.     And you're aware that that track, in fact, is

 5   leased to Tri-City Railroad, correct?

 6        A.     Yes.  Yes.

 7        Q.     Have you had an opportunity to review the Tri-City

 8   Railroad lease of that track?

 9        A.     I have not reviewed it in detail.

10        Q.     So you don't know whether under that lease the

11   Port of Benton has the right to require that that track be

12   removed despite Tri-City Railroad's lease?

13        A.     I do not.  I do not recall.

14                   MR. PETIT:  That is all I have, Your Honor.

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio?

16                   MR. DIJULIO:  Thank you, Judge Torem.

17   

18   

19                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

20   

21   BY MR. DIJULIO:

22        Q.     Ms. Hunter, other than Chief Baynes, Skinner,

23   Hines, and Hohenberg, are you aware of any other expert public

24   safety testimony in the record of these proceedings?

25        A.     I am not.
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 1        Q.     You have participated, in your position with the

 2   WUTC, in other diagnostic meetings involving the Port of

 3   Benton TCRY line, have you not?

 4        A.     Yes.

 5        Q.     In fact, you were part of the diagnostic meeting

 6   with respect to some modifications to the Steptoe crossing,

 7   isn't that correct?

 8        A.     That's correct.

 9        Q.     And TCRY was invited to and participated in that

10   meeting, isn't that correct?

11        A.     That is correct.

12        Q.     And you have no reason to believe that TCRY was

13   not invited to participate in the diagnostic meeting with

14   respect to the proposed Center Parkway crossing, do you?

15        A.     That is correct in that when I attended the

16   diagnostic meeting, we actually waited a few extra minutes to

17   see if perhaps a representative might just be running late to

18   that meeting.

19        Q.     And the meeting minutes reflect the fact that they

20   were invited, isn't that correct?

21        A.     That's correct.

22        Q.     As well as a representative of the Port of Benton?

23        A.     Correct.

24        Q.     Ms. Hunter, as part of your investigation of this

25   application by Richland and Kennewick, did you evaluate the
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 1   incidents involving trains and pedestrians or trains and

 2   vehicles at other TCRY crossings?

 3        A.     Yes.

 4        Q.     And what did you learn or determine from that

 5   investigation?  For example, the Steptoe crossing.

 6        A.     For example, we looked at the alternate route of

 7   Steptoe and looked at the accident history, and there have

 8   been no accidents that we could locate data on from the

 9   Federal Railroad Administration accident database, nor the

10   commission's database on accident history.

11        Q.     And is it, just to confirm, it is a requirement of

12   federal and state regulations that such incidents be reported

13   to the feds and to the state, is that correct?

14        A.     That is correct.

15        Q.     Did you have occasion to also evaluate the

16   accident history on -- at other intersections along the TCRY

17   route, other than the Steptoe crossing?

18        A.     Beyond the Steptoe crossing?

19        Q.     Yes.

20        A.     Not that I recall right now.

21        Q.     Thank you.

22                   MR. DIJULIO:  That's all I have.  Thank you,

23   Judge.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Smith.

25                   MR. SMITH:  Thank you, Your Honor.
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 1                        REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. SMITH:

 4        Q.     Ms. Hunter, in response to -- or Mr. Petit asked

 5   you a question about the characteristic of this crossing

 6   having the second track there.

 7               Do you recall that, those questions?

 8        A.     Yes.

 9        Q.     And were there other examples of multiple tracks

10   at-grade crossings in this state?

11        A.     That exists with multiple track, one as a siding,

12   or --

13        Q.     Two mainline tracks.

14        A.     Correct.  Yes.  There are many examples of that.

15        Q.     And what are some of the characteristics of -- do

16   you have an example?

17        A.     Of a crossing that has multiple tracks?  They are

18   located throughout our state.  For example, if you just picked

19   a crossing in Puyallup, you have two mainline tracks that go

20   through the city of Puyallup that are located in the downtown

21   area.  Very common.

22        Q.     How many trains per day are on that corridor?

23        A.     That example, there's upwards of 60 trains per

24   day.

25        Q.     And are there passenger trains on that line?
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 1        A.     Yes, there are.  There's Amtrak and Sound Transit

 2   that operates on that line.

 3        Q.     And do you know the speed those trains operate at?

 4        A.     I believe the freight operates at upwards of 40

 5   miles per hour, and passenger Amtrak through that area is 70

 6   miles per hour.

 7        Q.     And are any of the freight trains unit trains?

 8        A.     There's a mix of trains that traverse that line,

 9   including unit trains.

10        Q.     Mr. DiJulio asked you some questions about other

11   crossings along the TCRY route.  Are you familiar with those

12   crossings?

13        A.     I'm familiar with the crossings just in this

14   general area.

15        Q.     And how far apart are those crossings?

16        A.     The crossings that we're discussing around the

17   proposed Center Parkway?

18        Q.     No.  In Kennewick or in Benton County.

19        A.     If you just -- a few that come to mind for me

20   would be crossings on Fruitland, Washington, and Benton, for

21   example, BNSF crossings along the line through Kennewick.

22        Q.     And what are the distances between those

23   crossings, if you know?

24        A.     They're approximately .12 miles or .12 miles

25   apart.  Excuse me.  Let me correct that.  .2 miles apart, a
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 1   little over a thousand feet.

 2                   MR. SMITH:  Thank you, Your Honor.  That's all

 3   I have.

 4                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Any ReCross?

 5                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor.

 6   

 7   

 8                            EXAMINATION

 9   

10   BY ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:

11        Q.     Ms. Hunter, I had a question just briefly as to

12   the focus of your testimony and the change in position of the

13   commission staff at this petition versus the one that the city

14   previously filed in 2004, 2005.

15        A.     Uh-huh.

16        Q.     Shortly after your discussion of the previous

17   administrative law judge's ruling, ending on page 17 in your

18   testimony, you discuss the matter of acute public need, and

19   then you go into crossing safety thereafter.

20               What's the commission's current position on acute

21   public need?  Starting on page 17 is where you build your

22   opinion.

23        A.     So it's my understanding the acute public need,

24   the descriptor of acute associated with public need, was

25   described in the previous docket in this case.  It's also my
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 1   experience that it hasn't been the commission standard in the

 2   last dozen or so petitions to establish a new grade crossing.

 3               What I have found that the commission's approach

 4   to new crossings is, is more of a balanced approach that takes

 5   into account factors such as emergency response time,

 6   reduction of emergency response time.  Also it takes into

 7   account increased or more favorable traffic flow around the

 8   proposed crossing, also takes into account access to

 9   developable lands or access to services.  And then the fourth

10   criteria is really around have the site specific dangers of

11   the proposed crossing been addressed adequately and really a

12   balancing of that kind of four-pronged approach.

13               I use acute public need in my testimony in this

14   case because it has been previously used in the 2004 case, so

15   I -- and the petitioner in this case, as well as City of

16   Kennewick, uses the acute public need.

17        Q.     Do you recall whether the commission staff took a

18   position as to acute public need previously in the 2004 case?

19        A.     It's my understanding that commission staff did

20   not participate in the hearing, did not offer any witnesses.

21        Q.     On page 21 of your testimony, lines 10 to 13, that

22   says that the commission does believe the current response

23   times and improved response times, based on all of the police

24   and fire chief traffic testimony you reviewed, do present an

25   acute public need for the crossing.
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 1               Would you agree?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     Having reviewed the previous decision and the

 4   testimony presented in this case, do you see a major

 5   difference in the situation presented almost a decade ago to

 6   what the city's petition presents today?

 7        A.     As I recall, the case that was put forth by the

 8   Cities of Kennewick and Richland previously, there wasn't

 9   evidence presented on reducing emergency response time as part

10   of their case.  I think that that's a tremendous factor to

11   consider when looking at proposals such as this from a public

12   safety standpoint.

13               And for commission staff, that is definitely one

14   of the characteristics or qualities we look for when

15   evaluating a petition for a new crossing.  Just like we do if

16   there's a proposal to close a crossing, what's the impact on

17   emergency responders if that crossing is removed.

18        Q.     You just said that you had four factors that the

19   commission would balance in determining this acute public need

20   determination.

21        A.     Uh-huh.

22        Q.     And in my review of your testimony, it only

23   discussed the traffic -- sorry, the emergency response times.

24   Did you also factor in traffic flow access issues and the

25   safety mitigation?

0276

 1        A.     I did.

 2        Q.     Where would I find those in your testimony as it

 3   regards acute public need?

 4        A.     They might not be included in the testimony if

 5   they're not laid out here.

 6        Q.     And I understand that you did look at the safety

 7   mitigation issues in the following testimony, starting at the

 8   bottom of page 21.  That's explicitly laid out, but I did not

 9   see any references to acute public need, as you made that

10   determination about the crossing mitigation for safety issues.

11   I just want you to confirm if there's other places that relate

12   any of the other factors to acute public need.

13        A.     I think it is as you've outlined, Judge Torem.  It

14   is in the emergency response, and it is the proposed warning

15   devices' description of those at the proposed crossing.

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Those are all

17   the questions I had.

18               Mr. Smith, did you want to Re-Direct on any of

19   those?

20                   MR. SMITH:  Yes, Your Honor.

21   

22   

23   

24   

25   

0277

 1                        REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. SMITH

 4        Q.     Ms. Hunter, in response to Judge Torem's question

 5   about the current commission's position on the public needs

 6   standard in a grade crossing case, you described a balanced

 7   approach.  And you discussed more recent decisions of the

 8   commission and the decision of the last petition for this

 9   crossing.

10               Are there other -- or how does the commission

11   characterize its test in cases subsequent to this, the last

12   petition prior to this crossing?

13        A.     Can you restate that?

14        Q.     Has the commission -- let me rephrase it.  Has the

15   commission consistently used the adjective "acute" in

16   connection with the need element of the test for granting a

17   new grade crossing?

18        A.     No, they have not.

19        Q.     Okay.  What other adjectives or standards have

20   they referred to?

21        A.     Good cause shown, reasonable, consistent with

22   public interest, public convenience and necessity.  Yeah.

23        Q.     Thank you.  And Judge Torem also asked you about,

24   you know, what's the difference between this petition and the

25   prior petition.
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 1        A.     Uh-huh.

 2        Q.     And let me ask you some questions along those

 3   lines.  How many tracks were involved in the prior petition?

 4        A.     There were four tracks.

 5        Q.     And there are two in this petition, correct?

 6        A.     Correct.

 7        Q.     And how many railroads were conducting switching

 8   operations at this location during the last petition?

 9        A.     Three.

10        Q.     And in the last case, did the cities present a

11   clear case about what their -- what safety devices would be

12   installed at the crossing?

13        A.     No, they did not.

14        Q.     Finally, in the response to another question from

15   the judge, you indicated that the staff did not testify or

16   participate in the last grade crossing case at this crossing.

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     Okay.  But just to be clear, the staff did file a

19   legal brief at the end of that hearing.

20        A.     Yeah.  It's my understanding that Jonathan

21   Thompson filed a legal brief, but commission staff did not

22   testify.  Mr. Thompson participated in the hearings.

23                   MR. SMITH:  That's all I had.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit,

25   anything else?
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 1                   MR. PETIT:  Just a couple of follow up.

 2   

 3   

 4                        RECROSS-EXAMINATION

 5   

 6   BY MR. PETIT:

 7        Q.     You just testified that commission staff did

 8   participate in the hearing in the form of the attorney who was

 9   present participated?

10        A.     The attorney represented the commission.

11        Q.     And that attorney representing the commission in

12   the prior proceeding did not oppose -- or did oppose, rather,

13   the granting of the crossing, correct?

14        A.     That's correct.

15        Q.     Now, you've testified that there'd been a change

16   in the, basically, a change in the standard or the approach

17   that the commission uses in evaluating the need or whether or

18   not to grant a crossing petition such as the one we have in

19   front of us, correct?

20        A.     I reviewed the last eight or ten orders that the

21   commission has approved construction of a new grade crossing,

22   and that's what that statement is based upon, what I found in

23   those previous commission orders.

24        Q.     And I believe you testified that the approach that

25   the commission has adopted is more of a balancing test, is
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 1   that right?

 2        A.     Correct.

 3        Q.     And just so I'm clear on what the factors are that

 4   you're referring to, would you reiterate those for me, please?

 5   I think you said emergency response was one of them?

 6        A.     Right.  Reduction time of emergency response,

 7   improving traffic flow around the proposed crossing location,

 8   improved access to services and developable land, and then the

 9   last factor would be have the safety issues at the proposed

10   crossing been properly mitigated.

11        Q.     Now, in connection with your examination of this

12   particular crossing application, did you articulate in your

13   testimony at any place these factors of a balancing test and

14   evaluate them in arriving at your conclusion in written

15   testimony form?

16        A.     Not thoroughly.

17        Q.     You made reference to some of the elements,

18   correct?

19        A.     Correct.

20        Q.     But you did not articulate the test that you're

21   testifying about here today?

22        A.     Not entirely.

23        Q.     Did you articulate it at all?

24        A.     I think Judge Torem touched on it when he talked

25   about the first response and the proposed warning devices of
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 1   the crossing.

 2        Q.     But I'm talking about the test itself.  In other

 3   words, did you provide testimony that this is the way in which

 4   you understand the commission now approaches evaluation on

 5   whether or not to grant an at-grade crossing petition, factors

 6   one, two, three, four?

 7        A.     No, not entirely.

 8                   MR. PETIT:  That's all I have, Judge.

 9                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio?

10   

11   

12                        RECROSS-EXAMINATION

13   

14   BY MR. DIJULIO:

15        Q.     In fact, Ms. Hunter, the phrase "acute public

16   need" does not appear in RCW 81.63.020, does it?

17        A.     That is correct.

18        Q.     The term is "practicable," is it not?

19        A.     Yes.

20        Q.     And in your determination to -- the commission's

21   determination, staff's determination to support the petition,

22   it is your -- it is staff's position that the petition is

23   supportable under acute public need, correct?

24        A.     Correct.

25        Q.     And it's also supportable under standards such as
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 1   good cause shown?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     And public convenience and necessity?

 4        A.     Yes.

 5        Q.     As well as under any other balancing test that you

 6   suggested?

 7        A.     Yes.

 8                   MR. DIJULIO:  Thank you.

 9                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Anything else

10   for this witness?

11                   MR. SMITH:  No.

12                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Great.  Thank

13   you, Ms. Hunter.  Mr. Smith, I believe the only witness

14   exhibits that had not been previously admitted were Ms.

15   Hunter's 12 -- or KH-1T, her actual pre-filed testimony, and

16   11 subsequent supporting exhibits, so KH-2 through KH-12.

17               Do you want to move their admission at this time?

18                   MR. SMITH:  Yes, Your Honor, I move for

19   admission.

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Were there

21   any objections to any of Ms. Hunter's exhibits?

22                   MR. PETIT:  None.

23                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the cities.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

25   Hearing none, those 12 exhibits are admitted.  And, Mr. Smith,
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 1   does commission staff have anything else for its

 2   case-in-chief?

 3                   MR. SMITH:  No, Your Honor.  The commission

 4   rests.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 6   And I think we're ready, Mr. Petit, for your case-in-chief.

 7   Do you want a moment to sort out the witness order, or are you

 8   ready to put one on right away?

 9                   MR. PETIT:  I would like a minute to sort out

10   the witness order, Your Honor.  And in addition, I think it

11   might be profitable to have a brief off-the-record discussion.

12                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

13   Let's take a brief recess, and give me a minute just to make a

14   few notes, and then we'll take up your discussion.  So if you

15   could stay in place, we'll take up Mr. Petit's off-the-record

16   discussions in about 30 seconds.

17                   MR. PETIT:  Okay.

18                                                  (Short recess).

19                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Back on the

20   record, and have Mr. Norris be sworn in.

21                          GARY NORRIS

22   called as a witness by the Respondent, being first duly sworn

23   to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

24   was examined and testified as follows:

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.
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 1   If you'll have a seat and spell your first and last name for

 2   the court reporter.

 3                   THE WITNESS:  First name is Gary, G-a-r-y, and

 4   my last name is Norris, N-o-r-r-i-s.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit.

 6                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I believe

 8   your witness has in front of him his pre-filed testimony.

 9                   MR. PETIT:  I'm going to hand it to him, as

10   well.

11               Mr. Norris, I'm going to hand you two documents,

12   one of them has been marked Exhibit Number GAN-1T, which is

13   the pre-filed testimony of Gary Norris, and the second is

14   marked GAN-2T, which is the pre-filed rebuttal testimony of

15   Gary A.  Norris.

16               Could you take a look at those, please, and tell

17   me whether or not those are, in fact, your pre-filed testimony

18   and whether you affirm the accuracy of those documents.

19                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Let me just

20   make a brief clerical correction, that they're both marked

21   GAN-1T.  I appended the R to the rebuttal testimony in the

22   exhibit list.

23                   MR. PETIT:  All right.  We will go with that,

24   then, Your Honor, GAN-1TR for the rebuttal.

25                                      (Pause in the proceedings).
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 1                   THE WITNESS:  Yes, Your Honor, this is my

 2   testimony.  I would like to make one little correction,

 3   though.  In page 10 there is a -- on line 4, that should be SR

 4   240, rather than SR 204.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 6   So the last number on line 4 of page 10 should be 240.

 7                   THE WITNESS:  Correct.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm noting

 9   that on my copy of it.  Thank you.  Mr. Petit.

10                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you, Your Honor.

11   

12   

13                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

14   

15   BY MR. PETIT:

16        Q.     Mr. Norris, there is a brief statement of your

17   qualifications set forth in your testimony.  In addition to

18   the items that are cited there, have you had occasion to

19   testify in administrative proceedings before this commission?

20        A.     I have.  I have approximately about a 10-year

21   experience working with the Washington state rail office and

22   the UTC in pursuing the Washington state goal to eliminate at

23   grade crossings throughout the state.

24        Q.     Mr. Norris, I'm going to ask you to please speak

25   up a little bit because I'm having difficulty hearing you, and
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 1   I want to make sure everybody else can hear you, as well.  In

 2   connection with those proceedings, sir, have you had the

 3   occasion to testify with respect to the standards that should

 4   be evaluated and the information that should be taken into

 5   consideration in connection with whether an at-grade crossing

 6   should be allowed or taken out?

 7        A.     Yes, Your Honor.  In each case, there is extensive

 8   evaluation done of the various elements of consideration of

 9   closing a crossing to address the community and public need,

10   as well as the safety of the crossing itself.

11        Q.     Is it your opinion that the testimony that's been

12   presented, both in writing and what you've -- let me back up a

13   second.

14               You were present for the entirety of the testimony

15   given yesterday by the witnesses for the City of Richland and

16   Kennewick, correct?

17        A.     Yes, I was.

18        Q.     And you were present here this morning for the

19   testimony of Ms. Hunter from the UTC staff, correct?

20        A.     I was.

21        Q.     And based upon the written testimony that has been

22   filed and the oral testimony that you've heard in this

23   hearing, do you have an opinion as to whether or not the

24   cities have substantially produced evidence that would justify

25   an at-grade crossing at Center Parkway?
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 1        A.     Your Honor, my opinion in reviewing the

 2   documentation that's been provided to me by the city or

 3   through the city and the other participants in this hearing

 4   led to my conclusion that they have not provided sufficient

 5   documentation to warrant the opening of a crossing at this

 6   location.

 7        Q.     Well, let's start with one simple example of that.

 8   Are you aware of any requirement or recommendation in

 9   connection with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

10   that would pertain to evaluation of whether or not this

11   crossing application should be admitted, should be permitted?

12        A.     The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, in

13   discussing at-grade railroad crossings, recommends that a

14   benefit-cost analysis and an engineering study be conducted to

15   determine if a crossing is warranted at that location.

16        Q.     And could you recall the cite for that particular

17   provision?

18        A.     I believe it's section 8A.05.

19        Q.     In reviewing all of the documentation that has

20   been presented by the cities, the petitioners in this case, do

21   you -- can you identify that they have fulfilled that

22   requirement?

23        A.     I cannot identify that they've done the necessary

24   studies to document that there is a warrant for a crossing at

25   this location.
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 1        Q.     Now, what is your understanding of the response

 2   time criteria that we're dealing with here in connection with

 3   this crossing?

 4        A.     The response criteria as identified in the

 5   pre-filed testimony of the city and of the UTC participants

 6   indicated that the national standard requires a four-minute

 7   response time to 90 percent of the incidents that occur within

 8   the area.

 9               The city has generalized that more to be a

10   five-minute response time to 90 percent of the incidents for

11   fire and emergency or aid car response and generally a

12   five-minute response for the police events.

13        Q.     Now, do you have any issues with the response time

14   evidence that has been presented in connection with this

15   application?

16        A.     Yes.  Actually, I have several issues with it.

17   The first case we had talked about, the JUB study, that

18   indicated a two-minute, I believe, and-48-second time crossing

19   to -- with the new Center Parkway crossing.  Again, that was

20   only limited to a travel time study and did not address the 90

21   percent of the incidents that are occurring in the area, but

22   cited specifically on the Holiday Inn as being the measurement

23   of that travel time response.

24               Through that analysis, they went on to say that

25   with the opening that it would provide a benefit over the
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 1   existing route to the Holiday Inn.  Again, that was one

 2   location that was identified and does not represent 90 percent

 3   of the incidents that occur within this service area.  If you

 4   looked at the basically 90 percent of the incidents occurring

 5   south of the existing railway track, we are well within the

 6   national standards for servicing emergency response in this

 7   area.

 8        Q.     Well, let's stop with that point, if we could,

 9   because I'd like to show you a graphic.  Could we have our

10   Exhibit 1.  I'm going to show you what's been marked as and

11   admitted into evidence as Exhibit JP-5-X.  And would you take

12   it to page 3?

13               Could you blow that up a little bit?  That's good.

14               Do you recognize this map and diagram, Mr. Norris?

15        A.     Yes, this is the exhibit that's presented in the

16   JUB report.

17        Q.     Now, in connection with this exhibit, it shows a

18   study area in the yellow circle.  Do you see -- or yellow

19   oval.

20               Do you see that?

21        A.     Yes, I do.

22        Q.     And it also shows an area of improved response

23   time in green.

24               Do you see that?

25        A.     I do.
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 1        Q.     Do you believe that the area in green actually

 2   would benefit in improved response time if the Center Parkway

 3   crossing were constructed?

 4        A.     No, I do not.

 5        Q.     And could you tell me why you have reached that

 6   conclusion?

 7        A.     Do you mind if I use your pointer?

 8        Q.     Yes, you can.

 9        A.     Your Honor, just in summary, what the JUB report

10   had illustrated was that this area right here, the area in

11   green, would be the improved service area with the extension

12   of Center Parkway.  I did not find that to be the case in my

13   review of the information around the site and specifically the

14   distance from the Quinault Avenue fire station, Kennewick

15   station 63, through this route along Columbia Center

16   Boulevard, through this series of -- I want to correct the

17   record that yesterday it was stated by Mr. Baynes that this

18   was a series of right turns.

19               In fact, a right turn normally constitutes a stop

20   and a 90-degree turn to proceed onto the adjacent roadway.

21   This is, in fact, a series of extended wide radiuses that

22   allow the vehicle to travel through those curves at a

23   relatively high rate of speed, comparing to having to stop and

24   make a turn, a 90-degree turn.  The only stop is required here

25   when he enters Tapteal.
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 1               The measurement of the distance coming this way to

 2   Tapteal and Center Parkway versus coming this way along

 3   Quinault and up north Center Parkway to the same point is

 4   virtually the same distance.  So there's really no benefit for

 5   anybody in here with the access, which is not showing on this

 6   area.

 7               But then again, for anybody on this side of this

 8   point, the intersection of Tapteal and Center Parkway, is not

 9   benefited either because you have this route that can serve

10   this area as well and can today.  Looking at it from the

11   Richland station side, if we come across here to the Gage and

12   Steptoe intersection and then look at the distance from here

13   across Gage Boulevard and up Center Parkway back to this point

14   here of the Tapteal-Center Parkway intersection compared to

15   the route of going -- of the Gage-Steptoe intersection, going

16   north to Tapteal and Steptoe, the distance from Gage and

17   Steptoe to Tapteal and Steptoe is the same, essentially,

18   distance as from the Gage-Steptoe to the Center Parkway-Gage

19   intersection.  So essentially this distance is negated by this

20   distance in the service from the Richland station.

21               So then we have to apply this distance that

22   they're coming up Center Parkway and the new route along the

23   Tapteal route, which brings us down into here somewhere.  And

24   what we found with a quick review of the Google map, of the

25   distance to this point coming this way is about 13,000 feet,
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 1   and the distance from Steptoe and Gage coming this way is

 2   about 11,000 feet.  So that gives us 2,000 feet difference

 3   between the service area that will be provided.

 4               So coming this way from Richland, if this guy

 5   comes a thousand feet and the guy coming from the Steptoe --

 6   or, excuse me, the Center Parkway-Tapteal intersection comes a

 7   thousand feet, they're going to meet.  So about a thousand

 8   feet over here is really where the limits of service area is

 9   going to be improved as a result of the Richland station.

10   There is no improvement from the Quinault Avenue station 63.

11               So we have a very limited secondary support

12   service from that.  Obviously, that leaves us with the only

13   one that's really benefiting from this improved access here

14   would be the Holiday Inn.

15        Q.     Thank you, Mr. Norris.  Now, just so that the

16   record is clear, because you made reference to a number of

17   "this" points and "that" points, when you're talking about the

18   route from Richland 72 down Gage Boulevard and up to Steptoe

19   versus the route down Gage Boulevard and up Center Parkway, is

20   it your testimony, based upon what you just diagramed and

21   showed for us there, that those distances are roughly

22   equivalent?

23        A.     From the Steptoe-Gage to the Center Parkway-Gage

24   is equivalent to the Tapteal-Steptoe to Gage-Steptoe.

25        Q.     Right.  So -- and you testified that in terms of
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 1   response in connection with responding from Kennewick 63, that

 2   the -- there would be no improvement in service based upon the

 3   distance involved, should the Center Parkway be constructed,

 4   is that right?

 5        A.     To this point right here, the intersection of

 6   Tapteal and Center Parkway, there would be no improvement in

 7   travel time.

 8        Q.     All right.

 9        A.     Response time.

10        Q.     Okay.  Now, you can have a seat, then.

11        A.     Okay.

12                   MR. SMITH:  Your Honor, I'm disinclined to

13   question this, but I mean, we filed pre-filed testimony.

14   We've been having basically Re-Direct here in the introduction

15   of the witness for Cross, and I -- I'm just wondering how long

16   we're going to go.  I mean --

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit,

18   that's a good question.  It entered my mind as to how much

19   Re-Direct we were going to do.  If you could give us a time

20   estimate, then I'll comment further.

21                   MR. PETIT:  I would think another 20 minutes

22   would more than cover what I need to cover, Judge.

23                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And my

24   understanding, Mr. Smith, is that Mr. Norris is not testifying

25   on his -- what's already been submitted?
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 1                   MR. DIJULIO:  Well, I would join in Mr.

 2   Smith's objection in that so far, we haven't heard anything

 3   that isn't contained in either his Direct or rebuttal

 4   submissions.  He's just simply restating the same information

 5   that's contained in there.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And my

 7   further comment to Mr. Petit was going to be that we would

 8   move quickly to Mr. Norris.  The benefit of having heard the

 9   other testimony and anything that was in addition would be the

10   better purpose of this time, and I'll be amenable to

11   sustaining objections that it's not the -- what he's already

12   saying is already in evidence and can be pointed to by the

13   attorney, the objection would be sustained.

14               If he's commenting on other information that came

15   in during the course of yesterday's and this morning's

16   cross-examination, that will be allowed as appropriate for the

17   scope of what we're doing here.

18                   MR. PETIT:  I understand, Your Honor, but I do

19   believe this point about the equidistant access is not one

20   that is addressed in either Mr. Norris's Direct testimony or

21   rebuttal testimony.  It is, in fact, based upon what we heard

22   yesterday about response times and the evidence that was

23   presented orally by the cities' witnesses.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

25   Let's move along to the next point.  I appreciate Mr. Norris
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 1   being able to point those things out and bring them into

 2   focus, but I want to make sure we have adequate time for the

 3   cross-examination of his pre-filed testimony and the further

 4   examination as the attorneys see fit.

 5                   MR. PETIT:  I understand, Your Honor.

 6        Q.     Yesterday you heard Chief Baynes testify, and an

 7   exhibit was admitted yesterday which was a new exhibit called

 8   GAN-18-X.  I'm going to hand you a copy of that.

 9               Have you seen that document before?

10        A.     Yes, I have.

11        Q.     Okay.  And in connection with that document, what

12   did you understand that document to be?

13        A.     I understood that this was a document presented by

14   Chief Baynes to provide some additional information on

15   response times for the service area we're talking about from

16   the Richland and the Kennewick station.

17        Q.     Okay.  Now, if you would take a look at that

18   exhibit.  Is -- it's true that you did not have the benefit of

19   this exhibit when you prepared your rebuttal testimony in this

20   case, correct?

21        A.     That's correct.

22        Q.     And you understood that what Chief Baynes was

23   doing here, in part, is addressed in the second paragraph.

24   "We have looked at several addresses in the Tapteal area and

25   then several addresses around the mall" -- "around the Mail By
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 1   the Mall, P.F. Chang's area, the existing Center Parkway, the

 2   route we will use with this crossing."

 3               Do you have an opinion as to whether or not the

 4   addresses in question there would benefit from the crossing

 5   that we're talking about?

 6        A.     The addresses that are identified in that

 7   paragraph would not benefit by that crossing because they're

 8   all on the south side of the crossing itself.

 9        Q.     Now, you understand that Chief Baynes was

10   providing different numbers than were provided in the JUB

11   report regarding response time, correct?

12        A.     Correct.  I believe that Mr. Baynes was taking

13   issue with the study time that was provided in the JUB report

14   and was attempting to provide additional information which

15   counteracts that information that was originally presented.

16        Q.     And I believe that some of his testimony is

17   contained in the last paragraph, he also testified to this

18   orally yesterday, that responders crossing over the new

19   crossing and bounding to Tapteal will still be about one

20   minute better off, and I'm assuming that means with the

21   crossing.

22               Do you read it that way?

23        A.     That's the way I would interpret it.  I would say

24   this is a very confusing paragraph to try to understand just

25   exactly what is being attempted with that, and I think that
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 1   was one of the primary reasons we walked through the

 2   discussion we just did was to try to help put some clarity

 3   into what we're talking about in regards to this issue.

 4        Q.     All right.  Now, in connection with the data that

 5   was provided, the second and third pages of this Exhibit 18-X,

 6   GAN-18-X, do you believe that that data is sufficient to

 7   support any conclusions regarding response time?

 8        A.     No, I don't.  I can't tell where the destinations

 9   are, where the responding vehicle was dispatched from, just

10   what exactly is included in this.  Does it include the 90

11   percent response that we're talking about?  None of that

12   information is presented in this discussion.

13        Q.     In sum, do you believe that this Exhibit GAN-18-X

14   shines any light at all on the response times?

15        A.     No.  In fact, I think it's more confusing than

16   helpful.

17        Q.     Now, I'd like to move to a different subject

18   matter regarding reduction of congestion.  You had an

19   opportunity to address this in your pre-filed testimony, but

20   in addition to that, you heard testimony in regard to that,

21   correct?

22        A.     That's correct.

23        Q.     And in particular, you heard testimony about your

24   conclusion that diverting traffic from a grade-separated

25   crossing at Columbia Center Boulevard to an at-grade crossing
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 1   at Center Parkway would not result in any improvement in

 2   safety.

 3               Do you remember hearing that testimony?

 4        A.     I do.

 5        Q.     Do you remember who gave that testimony?

 6        A.     I believe that was Spencer Montgomery.

 7        Q.     All right.  Now, in connection with that

 8   testimony, did you have a chance last night to review a

 9   previously submitted Exhibit JD-3, which contains accident

10   data on Columbia Center Boulevard?

11        A.     Yes, I did.

12        Q.     Now, the gist of Mr. Montgomery's testimony was to

13   the effect that you were ignoring, in your conclusion about

14   diverting traffic from Columbia Center to Center Parkway, you

15   were ignoring vehicle-to-vehicle collisions and the danger of

16   that, correct?

17        A.     That's correct.

18        Q.     Can you tell me, having reviewed the accident

19   reports contained in Exhibit JD-3, whether there's any support

20   to Mr. Montgomery's conclusion that there would be an increase

21   in safety on Columbia Center as a result of construction of

22   the Center Parkway crossing as it relates to vehicular

23   collisions?

24        A.     Well, there's two factors in that equation.  The

25   first factor would be, of course, the accidents that are
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 1   occurring on the corridor, and the information that I've been

 2   given in this accident report is a 12-year accident history at

 3   two intersections on Columbia Center Boulevard, which suggest

 4   that there's about 13 crashes per year on the Quinault

 5   intersection and about 14 at the Canal Street intersection.

 6               The majority of these crashes are not injury

 7   crashes, only like an average of three injury per year and

 8   four at the other, at the Canal Street intersection.  And

 9   that's -- with that equation, considering that against a

10   potential for a fatal crash with a train and a car at the

11   Center Parkway-Tapteal -- or Center Parkway crossing.

12               The other fact about this data is there's no

13   understanding about how significant these crash histories are.

14   The normal process in doing a crash analysis is to compare it

15   to the amount of exposure that the intersection receives in

16   terms of million entering vehicles.  There's no analysis of

17   that.  We don't even know if these are significant rates for

18   these intersections compared to a statewide average which

19   suggests about one accident per million entering vehicles.

20               We don't have any of that analysis there to show

21   us that this is a significant problem or not a significant

22   problem.  So there's no basis to make a determination.

23                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Norris,

24   you used the word, I think, the word "significant" in two

25   different contexts.  As you just stated it, are you talking
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 1   statistically significant in the numbers?  Is that --

 2                   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 3                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And

 4   previously, perhaps I contorted it in my mind, you were

 5   referring to the degree of the accident, the more seriousness,

 6   injury accidents verus non-injury?

 7                   THE WITNESS:  Correct.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So the

 9   significance you're referring to is the statistical basis for

10   the analysis?

11                   THE WITNESS:  Right.  Correct.

12                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

13   Thank you.  Mr. Petit.

14        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  Based upon your review of the

15   accident data that's been provided in JD-3 and the testimony

16   that you heard yesterday, do you have an opinion as to whether

17   the cities have shown that construction of Center Parkway

18   would reduce vehicle collisions on Columbia Center Drive?

19        A.     I don't believe that they've made any attempt to

20   analyze that or document that for the record, that that would

21   be the case.  There's other elements of their testimony that

22   would lead one to believe that, in fact, there would not be

23   any reduction in crash history as a result of the opening of

24   Center Parkway.

25        Q.     Now, you're familiar with the JUB report regarding
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 1   traffic analysis at intersections in connection with -- that

 2   was submitted in connection with this petition, correct?

 3        A.     I am.

 4        Q.     What intersections did the JUB report address in

 5   terms of traffic?

 6        A.     There was only one intersection, Your Honor, that

 7   was addressed in the JUB report in terms of a level of service

 8   or delay analysis, and that was the intersection of Tapteal

 9   and Center Parkway in the 2033 future horizon condition with

10   the opening of the parkway.  And for that analysis, they did a

11   turning movement diagram and a level of service analysis which

12   showed essentially that the intersection would operate at

13   level of service C in the future.

14        Q.     Now, speaking of level of service gradings, you

15   heard testimony yesterday regarding level of service gradings

16   and what it would take to go from one grade to another,

17   correct?

18        A.     Yes, I did.  Mr. Montgomery mentioned that the

19   difference in a level of service grade was about 10 percent.

20   And that's not correct.  There are essentially five levels of

21   service grades from A to E, representing ultimate capacity of

22   a roadway.  And the hundred percent divided by five is 20

23   percent, is relatively different between level of service

24   grade.

25        Q.     So it's not 10 percent, it's 20 percent?
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 1        A.     Correct.

 2        Q.     Now, you also heard some testimony yesterday about

 3   queueing effects on both sides of this crossing should there

 4   be -- should it be constructed and a train be passing through.

 5               Do you remember that testimony?

 6        A.     Yes, I do.

 7        Q.     And could you --

 8        A.     Go ahead.

 9        Q.     Could you tell me, sir, what you understood that

10   testimony to be?

11        A.     Basically I understood the queueing from the track

12   would be about 300 feet, which would not impact the

13   Tapteal-Center Parkway intersection.  And that was the only

14   analysis that was deemed in the JUB report to be necessary for

15   this analysis.  However, a minor increase of 30 percent in

16   delay time associated with a train could lead to a queue that

17   would back up to the Center Parkway-Tapteal intersection.

18        Q.     All right.  Just for a reference, I'm referring

19   now to -- let's see Exhibit --

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  This is

21   JP-5-X, page 3.

22        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  JP-5-X, which is up on the

23   screen.  And the reference, the queueing you're talking about

24   is should the Center Parkway crossing be built within this

25   yellow oval study area, the queueing of backup in the event of
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 1   a train crossing with the signal down up to the north on

 2   Center Parkway.

 3               That's one queueing effect that will occur,

 4   correct?

 5        A.     Correct.

 6        Q.     And I believe you testified that you heard Mr.

 7   Montgomery testify to the effect that that would only be 300

 8   feet or so?

 9        A.     The JUB report itself stated about 330 feet of

10   queue would exist with the train traffic that was anticipated

11   in their analysis.

12        Q.     Okay.

13        A.     That was essentially a two-minute delay.

14        Q.     But Mr. Montgomery also addressed that issue

15   yesterday in his testimony, correct?

16        A.     Correct.

17        Q.     Okay.  Now, you just testified that a minor

18   increase in that two-minute delay would result in queueing.

19   What queueing are you referring to?

20        A.     The queueing that we just mentioned was the one on

21   Center Parkway emanating from the crossing, that would extend

22   back to the intersection of Tapteal and Center Parkway.  And

23   the report estimated would be about 330 feet, which is about

24   halfway back.

25               What we're saying, with a little additional
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 1   analysis, 30-second additional queueing time added to that,

 2   for about a two-minute-30-second train delay would result in a

 3   queue that would back up all the way to the Tapteal-Center

 4   Parkway intersection.  This was the only queueing analysis

 5   that was done.  There was no queueing analysis done for this

 6   distance, which should have also been included in any kind of

 7   evaluation of the impacts of the delay at the crossing.

 8               The other point of analysis that should have been

 9   included would be the future projections for train traffic

10   that could occur on that railway and the increased delay that

11   would result from that, and what the impact of that increased

12   delay would be on queueing at this intersection.  There was no

13   discussion of any of that.

14        Q.     The other point, just so we have this clear, you

15   again pointed to queueing, but did not identify the exact

16   location of the queueing.  You were talking about -- first we

17   were talking about to the north.

18               Now you were talking about to the south of the

19   proposed new crossing?

20        A.     Correct.  The south down to Gage.

21        Q.     All right.  And do you have an appreciation for

22   the level of traffic on Gage?  I mean, is that an arterial, is

23   that a heavily traveled street?

24        A.     It's a relatively heavy traveled street, correct.

25   Five-lane arterial.

0305

 1        Q.     And there was no analysis provided, either in Mr.

 2   Montgomery's testimony yesterday where he addressed queueing

 3   or in the JUB report, about the potential effect of traffic on

 4   Gage Avenue as a result of queueing from this crossing should

 5   there be a train passing through?

 6        A.     That's correct.

 7        Q.     Thank you.  I'm going to show you also an exhibit

 8   that is -- that was not available prior to the time that you

 9   submitted your rebuttal testimony.  It's been admitted as

10   GAN-17-X.  I believe I gave you a copy of that last night.

11               Do you have that?

12        A.     Is that this one?

13        Q.     That's it.  Did you have an opportunity to review

14   that exhibit?

15        A.     Yes, I did.

16        Q.     And it addresses the level of service grading for

17   two different intersections, correct?

18        A.     That's correct.  For Columbia Center Boulevard at

19   Quinault intersection and for Steptoe at Gage.

20        Q.     And in connection with that, those conclusions,

21   did you then go back to the traffic volumes that were

22   identified in the JUB report and attempt to verify the

23   accuracy of those conclusions?

24        A.     I did not do a level of service analysis to

25   attempt to document those conclusions.  There was no

0306

 1   documentation presented with this e-mail to support these

 2   calculations of where these volumes came from or what process

 3   was used in level of service analysis or what --

 4   substantiating the volumes.  So there was no basis, really, to

 5   determine the accuracy or vet the information as provided here

 6   for inclusion as supporting documentation.

 7               I would say, if you will, I could -- I would like

 8   to go through a little bit of the discussion of the volumes

 9   that we have here on the -- we can deal with that discussion,

10   if you want.

11        Q.     Please.

12        A.     If I could use this --

13                   MR. DIJULIO:  I'm not sure there's a question

14   before him.  He answered the question.  He did not do an LOS

15   analysis.  I'm not sure what the next question is.

16        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  All right.  The question is, is

17   there -- do you have data that demonstrates the effect or lack

18   of effect of the Center Parkway crossing on these LOS

19   classifications?

20        A.     Yes, I do, Your Honor.

21        Q.     Would you tell the judge briefly what that data

22   is?

23                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Norris,

24   did you have this data when you prepared your testimony?

25                   THE WITNESS:  Did I have the data?
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 1                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  The data

 2   you're about to illustrate.

 3                   THE WITNESS:  The data was presented in the

 4   JUB report that I'm going to rely on.  I did not have the

 5   benefit of this level of service analysis or any discussion of

 6   that in the preparation of my testimony.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit,

 8   I'm going to just defer this discussion until after the other

 9   cross-examination.  Because this is an area that he had the

10   data, but he didn't have an assertion like we got yesterday in

11   the GAN-17-X as to the LOS's.

12                   MR. PETIT:  Correct.

13                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  You've

14   already made the point that there's no substantiation for

15   these conclusions.

16                   MR. PETIT:  Correct.

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And I can

18   hear the wiggle of the chair for the objection coming, that

19   I'm going to sustain, that says this is beyond the scope of

20   yesterday's testimony.  This is the direction that I wanted

21   it.  If on Re-Direct we need to have a further explanation, we

22   can.

23                   MR. PETIT:  I understand, Judge.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I think

25   you've attacked the credibility of this.  And rather than
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 1   belaboring it further, I'll wait until cross-exam is done.

 2   And if we haven't gone into it, maybe I'll entertain it at

 3   that time.

 4                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you, Judge.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So, sorry to

 6   steal your thunder, Mr. Norris.  We may get to it again later.

 7        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  One final area, Mr. Norris.  Did

 8   you independently evaluate an alternative emergency response

 9   route as a result of the testimony you heard yesterday in

10   connection with the available response routes, from, in

11   particular, Richland 72?

12        A.     Yes, Your Honor.  We did take a look at an

13   alternative route to -- which would be non-impacted by an

14   at-grade crossing.

15        Q.     Let me show you what we are proposing to mark as

16   GAN --

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  It would be

18   19-X if we're going to a new exhibit.

19        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  19-X.

20        A.     I don't believe our graphic goes far enough to the

21   north.

22        Q.     We're going to get the right graphic.  43.

23        A.     Okay.  So --

24        Q.     Let me just ask you a question, Mr. Norris.  In

25   response to my discussion with you last night and the
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 1   testimony that you heard yesterday about response times and

 2   alternative routes being available, did you undertake to plot

 3   another alternative route by which 72 could respond to the

 4   Tapteal area?

 5        A.     Yes, we did.  We looked at the possibility from

 6   the Richland station 72, which is over here at, I believe it's

 7   -- can't see it on the map, but Gage, just north of Gage

 8   Street on Keene Road, which is over in this area (indicating).

 9               If the response trucks came down to Leslie, I

10   believe it's Leslie Road, and it came north that way and

11   across on Oxford Avenue up to Columbia Park Trail and then

12   down through the roundabout and over to Tapteal and down this

13   way, the response time to the intersection of Center Parkway

14   and Tapteal would be under the four-minute running time that

15   was required as part of the city standard and the national

16   standard.

17        Q.     If that route were taken, would the emergency

18   responders be required to cross any railroad crossing?

19        A.     No, they would not.

20                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you, Mr. Norris.  That's all

21   I have.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio?

23                   MR. DIJULIO:  Judge, thank you.

24   

25   
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 1                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. DIJULIO:

 4        Q.     Mr. Norris, in your long list of experience, it

 5   doesn't include service as a police officer or firefighter,

 6   does it?

 7        A.     It does not.

 8        Q.     And when you say four minutes' running time in

 9   reference to proposed Exhibit GAN-19-X, that is a mathematical

10   calculation based upon the distance from station 72 to a point

11   to the north of Tapteal, is that correct?

12        A.     That's correct, Your Honor.

13        Q.     And what speed did you assume for that?

14        A.     I used the speed that Chief Baynes had identified

15   in his discussion yesterday of 28 miles an hour.

16        Q.     Chief Baynes didn't use 28 miles per hour in his

17   calculations at all.  He was referring to the calculation that

18   resulted from the analysis that was done by Mr. Montgomery,

19   isn't that correct?

20        A.     I'm not exactly sure of that.  I heard the --

21        Q.     Mr. Montgomery used speed limit, which was 30

22   miles per hour, didn't he?

23        A.     He did not document the information that he had

24   used.

25        Q.     Okay.  And Chief Baynes' testimony will show that
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 1   he did his own calculations from Mr. Montgomery's data and

 2   averaged out, based upon his calculations, at 28 and a half

 3   miles per hour.

 4               Don't you recall that testimony?

 5        A.     I do recall that testimony.

 6        Q.     All right.  And, in fact, the response times in

 7   actuality are substantially less.  Excuse me, the response

 8   speed is substantially less than 28.5 miles her pour, isn't

 9   that the case?

10        A.     I don't believe that's the case, and particularly

11   not on these routes where you have 40-mile-an-hour posted

12   speeds.  And on Tapteal, you have virtually no traffic

13   conflicting with emergency response.

14               And just as an example, this morning I had the

15   opportunity, when leaving the hotel, to follow an emergency

16   response vehicle on George Washington Boulevard, which has a

17   posted speed of 35, and the fire truck was going on about 45

18   miles an hour.  So I think there's ample reason to believe

19   that they have the ability to go at least the posted speed, if

20   not higher.  And so the calculation that I made, I believe,

21   was very conservative and leaves a lot of room for a reduced

22   time.

23        Q.     And how many lights in this alternative route at

24   controlled intersections would they have to use?

25        A.     I believe there's one light at the entrance to --
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 1   I'm not exactly sure.  I think maybe Canyon Street.

 2        Q.     Let me ask the question differently, Mr. Norris.

 3   Do you know how many controlled intersections are passed as a

 4   result of this alternative route in your proposal?

 5        A.     When you speak of control, are you talking about

 6   traffic signal control, are you talking about stop sign

 7   control, or both?

 8        Q.     Both.

 9        A.     Both?  I don't know the exact number, no.

10        Q.     Okay.  And your four-minute time is the same

11   mathematical approach that Mr. Montgomery used, it did not

12   include turnout time, is that correct?

13        A.     The city standard, as Mr. Baynes was representing

14   yesterday, was a four-minute travel time with a one-minute

15   turnout time.  The national standard is a four-minute travel

16   time and did not include a turnout time, so --

17        Q.     Thank you.  By the way, Mr. Norris, when you were

18   doing work with respect to rail crossing issues for WSDOT, did

19   you have occasion to do work in Eastern Washington?

20        A.     I'm trying to remember.  I believe one occasion, I

21   did, yes.

22        Q.     Excuse me?

23        A.     I do on one occasion, I believe I did, yes.

24        Q.     What was the project?

25        A.     I think it was a project down in Yakima with an
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 1   evaluation of grade crossing.

 2        Q.     Okay.  And where are you currently living, sir?

 3        A.     I currently live in Preston, Washington.

 4        Q.     Let's begin with some basics.  You would agree

 5   with me, would you not, that highway traffic collisions are a

 6   statistically rare event at rail crossings?

 7        A.     It depends on the crossing.

 8        Q.     Isn't it a standard that is recognized nationally

 9   that highway traffic collisions are a statistically rare

10   event?

11        A.     I'd have to go into that further before I answer

12   that question.

13        Q.     You're familiar with the U.S. DOT Railroad-Highway

14   Grade Crossing Handbook?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     And isn't that specifically stated in that

17   handbook?

18        A.     I believe it is.

19        Q.     So you would agree that at least the U.S. DOT

20   handbook says that highway traffic collisions are a

21   statistically rare event?

22        A.     I would agree that a generalized manual

23   application for the country as a whole represents it in that

24   manner, but I wouldn't say on a case-by-case basis that's

25   necessarily the case, so you can't -- you can't apply that
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 1   thinking uniformly across the board and come up with the same

 2   result.

 3        Q.     You were employed by Renton for quite a while, is

 4   that correct?

 5        A.     That's correct.

 6        Q.     And you're familiar with all the at-grade

 7   crossings throughout the greater Kent-Renton-Auburn-Summer

 8   Valley?

 9        A.     Yes, I'm familiar with them.  As an anecdote to

10   that, I should state to you that the mayor of Renton informed

11   me at one time there should never be another at-grade crossing

12   in the state of Washington, so --

13                   MR. DIJULIO:  Objection, move to strike.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Granted.  It

15   was not responsive.

16        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  Are you familiar with GAN-10-X,

17   sir?  Have you had a chance to look at that previously?

18        A.     Yeah, I believe it's part of the pre-information

19   that we reviewed.

20        Q.     Thank you.  And you are familiar with GAN-11-X,

21   the report of reported incidents involving TCRY crossings?

22        A.     Uh-huh.

23        Q.     You've had a chance to consider that, as well?

24        A.     Yes.

25        Q.     Thank you.  Mr. Norris, rail volumes are variable
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 1   over time, are they not?

 2        A.     Depends on the location.

 3        Q.     With increased pedestrian -- excuse me, use of

 4   commuter rail and other passenger rail on the west side of the

 5   state of Washington, for example, you have substantially

 6   increased use of the lines over there, don't you?

 7        A.     Yes, we have.

 8        Q.     This particular -- there's no passenger rail

 9   service on this TCRY line, is there?

10        A.     Not to my knowledge, no.

11        Q.     And so this is a freight-related service only, is

12   that correct?

13        A.     To my understanding, yes.

14        Q.     Okay.  Your understanding is based upon what TCRY

15   has told you?

16        A.     Right.

17        Q.     By the way, you have not conducted any independent

18   study of traffic counts or done intersection analysis in any

19   part of your work in your engagement for TCRY, is that

20   correct?

21        A.     That's correct.  My -- the whole emphasis of my

22   work, Your Honor, was to evaluate the information that was

23   provided to determine if, in fact, it documented an acute need

24   for an additional crossing.

25        Q.     And it's also -- I know your testimony today as
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 1   well as in your pre-filed testimony, is that you have not

 2   stated there is no acute public need applying that standard,

 3   but rather it is your professional judgment that the record

 4   does not support a showing of acute public need?

 5               Am I stating your opinion correctly?

 6        A.     I believe you are.

 7        Q.     So while there may be acute public need, it is

 8   your opinion that it's not shown in the record?

 9        A.     That's my opinion.  Of what I reviewed, yes.

10        Q.     Okay.  Mr. Norris, in your pre-filed testimony, as

11   well as some of your testimony this morning, you commented on

12   a lack of data provided in the report.

13               Is that accurate?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     And you understand that a report does not

16   necessarily contain all of the background documentation that

17   may have gone into the conclusions of the report?

18        A.     No, sir, I do not understand that to be the case.

19   In fact, in virtually every engineering study that I have done

20   or been involved with or reviewed, it always includes all the

21   technical documentation to support the rationale of why a

22   determination was made, why a specific analysis was concluded.

23               And all the information that supports that, leads

24   up to that, is always included in a report, unless you're

25   talking about a technical memo to a city council or something
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 1   like that.  In any kind of a formal report, there's

 2   documentation to support it.

 3        Q.     And so you believe that this report was inadequate

 4   in not providing documentation for some of its conclusions, is

 5   that your testimony?

 6        A.     I not only believe that it was inadequate in not

 7   providing that documentation, I -- it was so generically

 8   presented in a way that I -- I couldn't even believe that the

 9   information had existed.  It almost was like the analyzer was

10   trying to avoid addressing the conditions that were necessary

11   to support his conclusions in the analysis.  So my only

12   conclusion from that was that data did not exist and,

13   therefore, they did not present it.

14        Q.     Okay.  You actually saw that data, and it did

15   exist, didn't it?

16        A.     No, it did not.

17        Q.     Mr. Norris, were you informed by your client that

18   it made a data request to the petitioners, the cities, for all

19   of the background information regarding the JUB report?

20        A.     Yes, I am aware of that.

21        Q.     And do you know if that information was produced?

22        A.     The information necessary to respond to the issues

23   relevant to determining whether that crossing was necessary

24   was not provided, and it was not included.

25        Q.     Was that data sufficient to show the reduction in
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 1   traffic with and without the Center Parkway improvement to

 2   Tapteal on intersections surrounding the area?

 3        A.     No, it was not.  And, in fact, Your Honor, what I

 4   was going -- about to do before we were cut off previously was

 5   show exactly how this report does not document those

 6   conditions.  In fact, it suggests that there's no difference

 7   between the with and without condition of Center Parkway on

 8   Columbia Center Boulevard or on Tapteal to any great extent.

 9               And, in fact, the volumes that are being increased

10   as a result of this extension are impacting the intersection

11   that was pointed out to us yesterday as being one of the

12   deficient intersections in the city, being Gage and Steptoe.

13   And virtually there's increase in the westbound approach with

14   a conflicting movement to the southbound left turn, which was

15   testified to yesterday as being a failing condition.  Overall,

16   that intersection has no significant benefit out of Center

17   Parkway.

18               So the traffic study, the modeling that was done,

19   shows no benefit of Center Parkway in doing anything to reduce

20   congestion on what you might assume to be the congested

21   routes, being Columbia Center Boulevard, has no documentation

22   that supports that.  In fact, shows there's no benefit to a

23   congested intersection that they did show was an impact.

24               So I'm sitting here, and believe me, as a

25   scientist, trying to evaluate this and make sense out of this,

0319

 1   all I'm hearing is rhetoric from the parties that are involved

 2   about how much better this is going to be, with no

 3   substantiation in fact that supports their contention.

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Objection.  Move to strike.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Overruled.

 6   He was responsive to the question.  A little bit longer.

 7        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  Mr. Norris, I asked you a

 8   question about data.  I did not ask you a question about the

 9   report.  Let me ask you again.

10               Do you recall the separate production by the

11   petitioners to TCRY's data request of backup data regarding

12   work that was done in preparation of what has been referred to

13   as the JUB report?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     Okay.  And you reviewed that data as part of your

16   analysis?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     And you still say there is no record of reduction

19   in intersection volumes with and without the improvements?  Is

20   that your testimony?

21        A.     That is my testimony.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Is that a new

23   exhibit?

24                   MR. DIJULIO:  Yes, please.

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We'll
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 1   mark this as GAN-20-X.

 2        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  Mr. Norris, I've handed to you

 3   what is identified as UTC 001811 through UTC 001834.  Do you

 4   have those in front of you, sir?

 5        A.     I do not.

 6        Q.     Excuse me.  I should hand you one as well.

 7        A.     Thank you.

 8                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

 9        Q.     You've seen all this documentation before, have

10   you not, Mr. Norris?

11        A.     Yes, I have.

12        Q.     Okay.  I'd refer you to 001825.  I'm going to hand

13   you a more legible version of that.

14        A.     Thank you.

15        Q.     That sheet has with and without impacts of the

16   Center Parkway crossing under various planning scenarios, does

17   it not?

18        A.     Yes.

19        Q.     Okay.  So you were wrong in your testimony that

20   there is not data provided regarding the difference in

21   intersection traffic as a result of the Center Parkway

22   improvement?

23        A.     I understood your question to be did the

24   documentation that was provided present a data that showed

25   that there was an impact of providing the Center Parkway
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 1   extension.  The data does not show that.

 2        Q.     The data shows the reduction in trips at those

 3   intersections with and without the Tapteal -- excuse me, the

 4   Center Parkway extension to Tapteal, isn't that correct?

 5        A.     No.  What the data shows is the difference in

 6   volumes between the with and without Center Parkway extension.

 7   There is not necessarily a reduction in the volume attributed

 8   to Center Parkway at these locations.  In fact, in some cases

 9   the volume goes up.

10        Q.     I'll ask you a series of questions, Mr. Norris,

11   regarding warrants for grade-separation crossings.  The Center

12   Parkway extension to Tapteal is not part of a designated

13   national highway system, is it?

14        A.     Not to my knowledge.  I'm not aware whether it is

15   or not.

16        Q.     What is, in fact, the designation of this

17   extension of Center Parkway to Tapteal?

18        A.     I believe, Your Honor, the city has defined it as

19   a minor arterial in their street network system.

20        Q.     This Center Parkway area is not otherwise

21   designated or designed to have partial controlled access,

22   wasn't that correct?

23        A.     A minor arterial normally has some limits on

24   access control.

25        Q.     This is not a controlled access road, is it?
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 1        A.     It's defined as a minor arterial.  By definition,

 2   a minor arterial has controlled access.

 3        Q.     All arterial streets have controlled access?

 4        A.     That is not correct.  The Washington State

 5   Department of Transportation and the RCW define access control

 6   limits for different classifications of highways and streets.

 7   This is a minor arterial.  It has a certain classification and

 8   certain access control associated with it.

 9        Q.     Okay.  But this does not have partial controlled

10   access as is currently -- as you understand the design, isn't

11   that correct?

12        A.     As it's designed today, no, it does not appear to

13   have access control.

14        Q.     The posted highway speed for this proposed

15   improvement will not exceed 88 kilometers per hour, stated

16   otherwise, 55 miles per hour?

17        A.     I have not seen any information on the design

18   speed.

19        Q.     You don't know it to be in excess of 55 miles per

20   hour, do you?

21        A.     I do not know it to be in excess of 55.

22        Q.     The average annual daily trip for this Center

23   Parkway extension will not exceed 50,000, is that correct?

24        A.     I -- I haven't looked at the ultimate design

25   volumes.  You're grasping at numbers that are -- aren't
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 1   relevant to the discussion.

 2        Q.     Excuse me, sir, but doesn't the U.S. DOT

 3   Railroad-Highway Grade Crossing Handbook provide a specific

 4   set of warrants to determine whether a grade separation should

 5   be provided?

 6        A.     Yes, it does.

 7        Q.     Okay.  And aren't the first four warrants that

 8   I've identified part of those --

 9        A.     Yes, they are.

10        Q.     -- material?  Is the maximum authorized train

11   speed in this area of the TCRY track in excess of 161

12   kilometers per hour or a hundred miles per hour?

13        A.     I don't believe it is, no.

14        Q.     Do an average of 75 or more trains per day, or 150

15   million gross tons per year, use this track or will use this

16   track in any foreseeable future?

17        A.     Not to my knowledge.  I don't have knowledge of

18   the ultimate plans.

19        Q.     The seventh warrant is an average of 50 or more

20   passenger trains per day in an urban area.  There won't be

21   that on this crossing, will there?

22        A.     I don't believe so.

23        Q.     In terms of crossing exposure, which is the

24   product of the number of trains per day and the average annual

25   daily trips, will not exceed 500,000, isn't that correct?
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 1        A.     I believe that's true.

 2        Q.     Passenger train exposure will not exceed; that is,

 3   the product of the number of passenger trains in AADT will not

 4   exceed 400,000 in this?  That's a given in this case without

 5   any passenger trains?

 6        A.     Right.  Correct.

 7        Q.     The expected accident frequency offered for, EAF,

 8   for active devices and gauges calculated by the U.S. DOT

 9   accident prediction formula, including five-year accident

10   history, exceeds 0.2.

11               Doesn't exist here, does it?

12        A.     No, it does not.

13        Q.     The vehicle delay exceeding 10 vehicle hours per

14   day is not present currently or predicted any time in the

15   future?

16        A.     That analysis is not done, Your Honor, to

17   determine that.

18        Q.     You're not aware of that, are you?

19        A.     It was not in the information I received.

20        Q.     Okay.  And it's not analysis that you performed,

21   is it?

22        A.     No, I did not.

23        Q.     And an engineering study indicates that an absence

24   of grade-separation structure will result in the highway

25   facility performing at a level of service below its intended
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 1   minimum design level 10 percent or more of the time.  You have

 2   no information regarding that, do you?

 3        A.     I do not.

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Thank you.  That's all I have

 5   for this witness, Your Honor.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Smith.

 7                   MR. SMITH:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 8   

 9   

10                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

11   

12   BY MR. SMITH:

13        Q.     Good morning, Mr. Norris.

14        A.     Good morning.

15        Q.     Do you have, or could I ask you to turn to page 4

16   of your rebuttal testimony.  And if I could direct you to

17   lines 7 through 14.  And there you quote from the initial

18   order in Docket Number TR-040664, is that correct?

19        A.     That's correct.

20        Q.     And the first step, as you quote there, in the

21   analysis of a new crossing looks at whether the site specific

22   dangers of the crossing are moderated to the extent possible

23   with modern design and signals, is that correct?

24        A.     That's correct.

25        Q.     And you do not address that prong of the test in
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 1   your testimony, is that correct?

 2        A.     No, I did not.

 3        Q.     I'm sorry to jump around, but I think it's the

 4   last time.  If you could turn to your rebuttal testimony, page

 5   2, lines 22 and 23.  You use the adjectives, quote, extremely

 6   great or serious and crucial or critical, closed quote, to

 7   describe the level of need a petitioner must show in a grade

 8   opening case, is that correct?

 9        A.     Yes.

10        Q.     And using those adjectives and those put forth in

11   your testimony, you're not quoting from the commission report,

12   are you?

13        A.     In terms of the definition?

14        Q.     Those adjectives, yes.

15        A.     Well, the acute public need is a quote from -- but

16   in terms of the definition, that's a dictionary.com definition

17   of acute.

18        Q.     But the term or phrase, extremely great or

19   serious, crucial, or critical, did you get those from any

20   commission order?

21        A.     No, I did not.

22        Q.     On that same page of your rebuttal testimony, line

23   21 through 23, you state, "In my opinion, none of the

24   testimony in this proceeding demonstrates any need for the

25   subject crossing."
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 1               Do you see that?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     And by saying that, I take it you are completely

 4   discounting the testimony of the director of fire and

 5   emergency services for the City of Richland, chief of police

 6   for the City of Richland, the fire chief for the City of Kent

 7   (sic), and the chief of police for the City of Kent (sic), is

 8   that correct?

 9        A.     City of Kennewick?

10        Q.     Sorry, Kennewick, yes.

11        A.     No, I took all that information into

12   consideration.  And there was no really documented

13   conclusions, other than comments made regarding the additional

14   new route that would be opened up.  If we opened up new routes

15   every time we wanted to have improved service -- that's why we

16   have set standards, that's why we do benefit-cost analyses, to

17   determine if they're effective in achieving the goals and the

18   investment of public funds to these improvements.

19        Q.     My question, sir, was when you say that none of

20   the testimony in this proceeding demonstrates any need for the

21   subject crossing, when you use "none," I take it you're

22   completely discounting the testimony of the first responders,

23   is that correct?

24        A.     That's correct.

25        Q.     And in your analysis of the need for the Center
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 1   Parkway crossing, you did not balance any public safety

 2   benefit from enhanced response times of first responders

 3   around the crossing against any increased public danger

 4   related to opening the grade crossing at Center Parkway, is

 5   that correct?

 6        A.     I'm not quite sure I understand your question.

 7        Q.     Okay.  When you looked at -- when you -- you --

 8   did you balance the increased safety by increased response

 9   times, faster response times of first responders around that

10   area, did you balance that against the danger of opening a new

11   crossing at that spot?

12        A.     As we've talked about, there's no increased

13   benefit to response times as a result of this action.

14        Q.     Page 12 of your testimony, lines 4 through 19.

15   Excuse me, 4 through 9.

16        A.     Page 12?

17        Q.     Yes.

18        A.     Of the pre-filed or the rebuttal?

19        Q.     Of the Direct.

20        A.     Okay.

21        Q.     At lines 4 through 19 (sic) you discuss your

22   participation in the Target Zero Program.  Do you see that?

23        A.     Yes.

24        Q.     And when you're discussing the number of

25   acceptable fatalities in the United States annually, are you
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 1   -- are you limiting your use of the term fatalities to train

 2   crossing fatalities?

 3        A.     No, it's total fatality.

 4        Q.     And as a member of the Target Zero Program, are

 5   you familiar with target zero strategy to focus on the four

 6   E's?

 7        A.     Yes.

 8        Q.     Can you tell us what they are?  I'm sorry, if you

 9   know them off the top of your head.

10        A.     Well, it's engineering records, funding of

11   engineering improvements for crossings.

12        Q.     One is also emergency medical services response

13   times?

14        A.     Right.

15        Q.     And I'll ask you to turn to page 5 of your Direct

16   testimony.  Line 22.  You agreed that the new crossing may

17   improve access times to certain locations, but you go on to

18   downplay the value of the new crossing as an emergency route

19   because of the unpredictability of train delays, is that

20   correct?

21        A.     That's correct.

22        Q.     And the unpredictability of train delays is a

23   factor that applies to all grade crossings, is it not?

24        A.     That's correct.  The other side of that issue is,

25   though, there is routes to these areas that are not impacted
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 1   by grade crossings that could be selected by the response.

 2        Q.     And on page 6, lines 6 through 11, you state that

 3   train traffic is likely to increase substantially in the

 4   future, is that correct?

 5        A.     That is my understanding, correct.

 6        Q.     And you cite the responses of the TCRR two data

 7   requests as the source of this projection, is that correct?

 8        A.     That's correct.

 9        Q.     And your testimony presents no independent basis

10   for this projection, is that correct?

11        A.     That's correct.

12        Q.     If you'd turn to page 2 of your Direct testimony.

13   I'm sorry, that would be your rebuttal testimony.

14        A.     Page 2 of the rebuttal?

15        Q.     Yes.  Lines 15 through 17.  You criticize that

16   part of Ms. Hunter's testimony that deals with the diagnostic

17   review conducted for the proposed crossing because a

18   diagnostic review does not address whether the new crossing is

19   required.

20               Do you see that?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     And was it your understanding that portion of Ms.

23   Hunter's testimony was directed to the need for the new

24   crossing?

25        A.     I understood that that -- her part of the
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 1   testimony in the diagnostic review was to look at the devices

 2   that could be installed in there to mitigate the impacts of

 3   that crossing, not whether the crossing was needed or not.

 4        Q.     Thank you.  That's all I have.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit,

 6   any Re-Direct?

 7                   MR. PETIT:  Could you give me a second, Your

 8   Honor?

 9                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

10                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor, I do not.

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I

12   think for this witness we had Mr. Norris's pre-filed Direct

13   and rebuttal testimony, GAN-1T and 1TR, as well as two new

14   exhibits that were introduced on cross-exam, GAN-19-X, which

15   was a one-page document regarding a proposed alternate route,

16   and GAN-20-X, which I think, if my count is correct, is 24

17   pages of responses to data requests that Mr. DiJulio used.

18               Is there any objection to admitting these, I think

19   it's four total exhibits, to the record?

20                   MR. PETIT:  Could you give us the numbers

21   again, Judge?

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  GAN-1T and

23   1TR.

24                   MR. PETIT:  Right.

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  GAN-19-X and
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 1   20-X, and let me go back and also add GAN-10-X and 11-X were

 2   also cited and introduced to the witness during this course.

 3   Any objections to those six exhibits?

 4                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio?

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  No objection.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And Mr.

 8   Smith?

 9                   MR. SMITH:  No objection.

10                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio,

11   can you provide me a more legible copy of that particular page

12   of GAN-20-X at some point later in the day?

13                   MR. DIJULIO:  I can do that right now.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I think in

15   the course of discovery all of you probably have a more

16   legible copy than the one I got.

17                   MR. DIJULIO:  It's in the data production.

18   Just for the purposes of meeting the 8 by 10 requirement,

19   that's how it was produced.

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

21   Thank you for the much larger copy.  I'm going to include this

22   with my copy of the exhibit.  And if it is referenced at all

23   in my -- in your briefs or if it's referenced in my opinion,

24   then I'll make sure we get a blown up copy of this into the

25   record itself.
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 1               All right.  We're at about noon at this point.

 2   Mr. Norris, you can step down.  Thank you.

 3               How do you propose we proceed, Mr. Petit?  Did you

 4   want to wait until after lunch to take the two witnesses of

 5   the city.

 6                   MR. PETIT:  I think that would make sense.

 7                   MR. DIJULIO:  How long do you think you're

 8   going to have for Mr. King?

 9                   MR. PETIT:  Maybe ten minutes.

10                   MR. DIJULIO:  He's here.  We could get him.

11   He is the assistant city manager, but he should be able to --

12                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  If he's here,

13   is there any concern with putting him on now rather than

14   having him come back again after lunch?

15                   MR. PETIT:  Use of the washroom, Your Honor.

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

17   We'll take a five-minute comfort break, and then we'll come

18   back with Mr. King in five minutes.

19                                                  (Short recess).

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

21   We're back on the record.  We're going to take one more

22   witness before the lunch break, Mr. Bill King, I believe from

23   the City of Richland.  Sir, if you would raise your right

24   hand.

25   
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 1                           WILLIAM KING

 2   called as a witness by the Respondent, being first duly sworn

 3   to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

 4   was examined and testified as follows:

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Please have a

 6   seat and state and spell your name for the record.

 7                   THE WITNESS:  It's William King,

 8   W-i-l-l-i-a-m, K-i-n-g.

 9   

10   

11                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

12   

13   BY MR. PETIT:

14        Q.     Mr. King, how are you?

15        A.     Good, thank you.

16        Q.     Could you state what your position is with the

17   City of Richland?

18        A.     I'm the deputy city manager, generally responsible

19   for community development activities in the city.

20        Q.     And in that capacity, are you familiar with a

21   project, a rail loop in the Horn Rapids Industrial Park that

22   is currently before the city council?  In fact, it was voted

23   on last night by the city council?

24        A.     I am.

25        Q.     I'm going to show you what's been marked and
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 1   admitted as KJ -- Exhibit KJ-14-X, and ask if you recognize

 2   that as the documentation that was posted on the city's

 3   website in connection with this rail loop that was voted on at

 4   the city council meeting last night.  You know, it'd probably

 5   be easier if you could look at the one with the staple on it

 6   so you don't have to be bothered by the clip.

 7        A.     Okay.  So I recognize this as some of the

 8   documentation that was presented to city council.  This seems

 9   to include a report to the economic development committee and

10   at least draft versions, if not the final versions, of several

11   contracts related to this matter.

12        Q.     And those -- I believe these are the final

13   versions that were voted on last night because these were

14   taken by us from the website Monday morning.  Do you have any

15   reason to doubt that?

16        A.     There were some minor changes introduced during

17   the public meeting last night that were incorporated in the

18   final approved version.

19        Q.     Okay.  But the documents themselves as they relate

20   to the loop involved, number one, a lease of the property upon

21   which a rail loop will be constructed and, number two, the

22   sale of approximately 25 acres to the party that is going to

23   develop and build the rail loop, is that correct?

24        A.     That's correct.

25        Q.     Now, Braden, could we have page 27?
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 1               I'm showing you what's been marked, what is page

 2   27 of the exhibit you have in front of you, sir.  And would

 3   you agree with me that that is an exhibit to one of these

 4   agreements, that shows the rail loop that was voted on and

 5   approved by the city council last night?

 6        A.     Yes, I think this is one of several exhibits

 7   relating to that, yes.

 8        Q.     Would you agree with me that that's a fair

 9   representation of the plan?

10        A.     Yes.

11        Q.     Which would include a mile-and-a-half rail loop

12   and ancillary trackage connecting to the Horn Rapids -- Horn

13   Rapids spur and ultimately to the Port of Benton railroad,

14   correct?

15        A.     Yeah, that would be correct.

16        Q.     Now, in connection with that lease to construct a

17   rail loop, are you familiar with the -- an Exhibit B that

18   relates to what kinds of uses the loop can be put to in terms

19   of rail cars and trains going over it, what kind of products

20   can be brought in?

21        A.     I'm somewhat familiar with that.

22        Q.     Page 28.  I'm referring to the small numbers at

23   the bottom.

24        A.     Since there's multiple agreements, there's more

25   than one page 28, so -- sorry, if you can help direct me to
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 1   which page 28 you're talking about.  Okay.  I see this on page

 2   23 of --

 3        Q.     I apologize for this, but here's one that's

 4   numbered at the bottom.  These are --

 5        A.     Oh, I see.  Your Exhibit 28.

 6        Q.     Yes.

 7        A.     Okay.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So we're on

 9   KJ-14-X, for the record, page 28 of that exhibit.

10                   MR. PETIT:  Yes, and that is the Bates number,

11   applied number, not the number of the document itself.

12               Braden, if you could raise it up so the judge can

13   see what I'm talking about.

14                   THE WITNESS:  Yes.

15        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  All right.  Looking at that page

16   28 of this exhibit, Mr. King, you see there that one of the

17   items that is a permitted use for this new rail loop, in terms

18   of products to be brought in, is containerized items for

19   companies such as Wal-Mart, Target, Costco, etc.?

20        A.     I do.

21        Q.     Okay.  Now, do you recall that you gave a

22   statement or appeared in a television clip, news clip, in

23   connection with this rail loop recently?

24        A.     I was interviewed a few weeks ago on this matter,

25   yes.
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 1        Q.     All right.

 2                   MR. PETIT:  This is a very short video clip,

 3   Your Honor, and I would like to play it at this time.  It is

 4   the TCRY's cross-exam Exhibit 41, which we would like then to

 5   number in the next logical number sequence.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Before we hit

 7   play on that, this looks like it would be previously marked as

 8   JD-39-X.  It's the television news interview by Mr. King on

 9   the new rail loop.

10                   MR. PETIT:  JD --

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm sorry,

12   it's JD-39-X.

13                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

15   Let's play the video.

16                                                  (Video played).

17                   MR. PETIT:  Okay.

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  We've

19   completed the video.  Let's go back to the examination.

20        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  There's two parts of the video

21   that I want to focus on, Mr. King.  First of all, the

22   reporter, Mr. Chick, I believe his name is, made some

23   statements about containerized mod -- what amounts to modular

24   train use of this loop, correct?

25        A.     He seemed to, yes.
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 1        Q.     Yes.  And is that based upon information that you

 2   gave him?

 3        A.     I did not talk to him directly.  I talked to

 4   another reporter for the station.

 5        Q.     Did you tell that reporter that one of the uses

 6   for this loop would be as a container collection and shipment

 7   facility?

 8        A.     I don't recall specifically saying that, no.

 9        Q.     You agree with me, though, that Exhibit B that you

10   have in front of you does, in fact, contemplate that use for

11   this loop, correct?

12        A.     Among many others, yes.

13        Q.     Many others, including agricultural products,

14   correct?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     And including fertilizers and phosphates and other

17   agricultural related products, correct?

18        A.     Yes.

19        Q.     As well as non-agricultural products including

20   metal goods and lumber, machinery, and so forth, correct?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     And in addition to that, fuel such as ethanol

23   diesel?

24        A.     Potentially.

25        Q.     In fact, it contains on page 29 a list of
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 1   non-permitted uses?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     Which would be coal, radioactive waste, hazardous

 4   waste, and any other product that the city determines is a

 5   dust or odor nuisance per city code.  Do you see that?

 6        A.     Yes.

 7        Q.     But on Exhibit B, which is on page 28, it states

 8   that this permitted uses list is not meant to be exclusive of

 9   products outside of the not allowed list, which is Exhibit C,

10   correct?

11        A.     Yes.

12        Q.     So in addition to the enumerated uses on Exhibit

13   B, there could be additional products that would be brought

14   into this loop via train, that would be allowed pursuant to

15   this lease agreement, correct?

16        A.     Potentially.

17                   MR. PETIT:  That's all I have, Judge.

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Any

19   additional questions for this witness from the city?

20                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the city.

21                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  From the

22   commission?

23                   MR. SMITH:  No, Your Honor.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

25   Mr. King, thank you very much for your time.  You can step
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 1   down.

 2               Counsel, on my watch it's approaching 12:20.  I

 3   would suggest we come back at 1:30 and be ready if Mr. Ballew

 4   is ready at 1:30 and proceed from there.  Is that acceptable?

 5                   MR. PETIT:  Yes, Your Honor.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  We're at

 7   recess for the next hour and 10 minutes.

 8                                                  (Lunch recess).

 9                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  We'll be back

10   on the record and call Gary Ballew.

11               Sir, if you'll approach the witness chair and

12   raise your right hand.

13                            GARY BALLEW

14   called as a witness by the Respondent, being first duly sworn

15   to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

16   was examined and testified as follows:

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Please have a

18   seat.  State your first name and your last name and spell both

19   for the record.

20                   THE WITNESS:  Gary Ballew, G-a-r-y,

21   B-a-l-l-e-w.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit.

23                   MR. PETIT:  Thank you, Your Honor.

24   

25   
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 1                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. PETIT:

 4        Q.     Mr. Ballew, how are you?

 5        A.     Good.

 6        Q.     We know each other.

 7        A.     Uh-huh.

 8        Q.     For a number of years, correct?

 9        A.     Correct.

10        Q.     What is your current capacity with the City of

11   Richland?

12        A.     I'm the economic development manager for the city

13   of Richland.

14        Q.     And what does that position entail?

15        A.     A number of different activities related to

16   economic development throughout the city, recruitment of

17   industries, business support activities, managing the real

18   estate, the surplus real estate assets the city has, working

19   on the research district, wine science center is one of my

20   projects right now, and lead for the city's efforts on

21   broadband, and probably like a slew of other things in there.

22   Actually, right now I manage the housing project, as well.

23        Q.     In your capacity as the economic development

24   manager, have you had participation in the development of Horn

25   Rapids Industrial Park as it relates to rail facilities?
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 1        A.     Yes, I have.

 2        Q.     And in particular, I'd like to direct your

 3   attention to two specific rail facilities.  First of all, a

 4   proposed ConAgra cold storage warehouse facility.

 5               Are you familiar with that?

 6        A.     Yes, I am.

 7        Q.     And is that to be constructed on some property on

 8   which the ConAgra company has entered into an agreement to

 9   purchase from the city of Richland?

10        A.     Yes, it is.

11        Q.     And the second project that I'm going to be asking

12   you questions about is one that is in the news today.  That is

13   a 1.5-mile rail loop to be constructed pretty much adjacent to

14   the ConAgra cold storage facility, correct?

15        A.     That's correct.

16        Q.     And so that we can get an orientation on this, I'd

17   like to show you what is in evidence as Exhibit 10-X -- I'm

18   sorry, JD-10-X.  And if you would turn to page -- I'll give

19   you the page.

20               First of all, before -- before looking at that

21   page that I identified for you, you're familiar with what this

22   draft agreement relates to?

23        A.     Yes, I am.

24        Q.     All right.  And could you tell us what it relates

25   to?
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 1        A.     It is a site development agreement.  It is a draft

 2   that is under negotiation between the City of Richland and

 3   ConAgra Foods Lamb-Weston.  It's in relationship to the

 4   automated cold storage warehouse project.

 5        Q.     The one that you had previously testified

 6   regarding in response to my question, correct?

 7        A.     Correct.

 8        Q.     Okay.  And before I ask you questions about that

 9   exhibit, I'd like to show you what's been marked as and in

10   evidence as Exhibit JD-9-X, an agreement for purchase and sale

11   of real property.

12               Is that the real estate contract between the City

13   of Richland and ConAgra Foods that relates to the construction

14   of this cold storage facility that we're talking about?

15        A.     It is.

16        Q.     Now, I'll take that off your hands.  I'm not going

17   to ask you any more questions about it.

18        A.     Okay.

19        Q.     If you turn to the page I identified, the color

20   drawing which is up on the screen, as well, the ConAgra

21   facility is located or is to be located in roughly the same

22   vicinity as the 1.5-mile rail loop, correct?

23        A.     Correct.  As you look at this map, the site

24   labeled under contract, 80 acres, the 80 acres with the

25   writing running north south, is the 80 acres that's in the
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 1   purchase and sale agreement.

 2        Q.     Am I pointing to it on the screen?

 3        A.     Yes, sir.

 4        Q.     Okay.  And there's an additional 80 acres to the

 5   south.  That's a property on which ConAgra has an option to

 6   purchase, correct?

 7        A.     That is correct.

 8        Q.     Okay.  And this drawing shows some rough depiction

 9   of rail track feeding into this facility or into this property

10   that ConAgra has a contract to purchase from the City of

11   Richland, correct?

12        A.     Correct.

13        Q.     Is it your understanding that that facility is to

14   be serviced by rail?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     Is it your understanding that that facility is to

17   be serviced by any unit trains?

18        A.     No.

19        Q.     So this would be less than unit train traffic that

20   would be going through that rail system that's depicted on

21   this exhibit, correct?

22        A.     Correct.

23        Q.     Has the city done any studies to determine what

24   the anticipated volume of rail traffic would be coming into

25   that ConAgra facility, assuming that it is built?
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 1        A.     We haven't conducted a study.  We've had

 2   discussions with ConAgra as well as their third parties.

 3        Q.     And as a result of those discussions, has the city

 4   come to any conclusion as to the volume of rail traffic that

 5   could be anticipated if this cold storage facility is, in

 6   fact, built?

 7        A.     We did have an initial estimate.  That was with a

 8   third-party called -- I'm trying to remember the company name.

 9   It's a Dutch company.  And when I say third party, ConAgra

10   will actually transfer this purchase and sale agreement to a

11   third party, or transfer the land to a third party who will

12   build, own, and operate this cold storage facility.

13               So this first company was a Dutch company.  The

14   rail design you see came from their initial work.  They

15   estimated, I want to say, 30 cars a week could be generated

16   from the facility.  The new third party, which is -- has not

17   provided an estimate to us.

18        Q.     So the Dutch company is out, as I understand it?

19        A.     That's up to ConAgra, but right now they have

20   indicated this other -- other party is their preferred third

21   party.

22        Q.     Okay.  Irrespective of the number of cars that

23   we're talking about here, there's no question that this

24   facility, if constructed, will generate additional rail

25   traffic, correct?
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 1        A.     Correct.

 2        Q.     And that would be over the Horn Rapids spur, which

 3   comes off of the Port of Benton line, correct?

 4        A.     Correct.

 5        Q.     And is there any way to get to that facility that

 6   would not require a train to cross the proposed Center Parkway

 7   crossing?

 8        A.     No.

 9        Q.     You can hang on to that.

10        A.     Okay.

11        Q.     I'm going to show you now what's been admitted as

12   Exhibit JD-38-X.

13               If we could have number 40, Braden.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit?

15                   MR. PETIT:  Yes, Your Honor.

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  This Exhibit

17   JD-38-X, as well as the one you just referenced, JD-9-X --

18                   MR. PETIT:  Right.

19                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  -- are

20   marked, but not yet admitted.  So I just want to be clear so

21   there's not any confusion, I'm going to ask you about it

22   later.

23                   MR. PETIT:  Got it.

24        Q.     Just one additional question before we move on,

25   then.  I'm going to show you again what's been marked for
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 1   identification as Exhibit JD-9-X.  I think you already told me

 2   that that is a copy, appears to be an accurate copy of the

 3   agreement between City of Richland and ConAgra to sell the

 4   property we've identified on the exhibit, correct?

 5        A.     Yes.

 6        Q.     Now, going back to what's been marked for

 7   identification as JD-38-X, it's entitled, "Horn Rapids rail

 8   loop, November 13, 2013."

 9               You recognize this document?

10        A.     Yes, I do.

11        Q.     In fact, it's slides from a PowerPoint

12   presentation that you gave --

13        A.     Correct.

14        Q.     -- on November 13th, last week?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     Who did you give it to?

17        A.     Port of Benton commissioners.

18        Q.     And where did that presentation occur?

19        A.     At the Port of Benton offices in north Richland.

20        Q.     And did you strive, in preparing this set of

21   slides that ended up as a PowerPoint presentation, to be as

22   accurate as possible in the presentation that you made?

23        A.     I did strive to, yes.

24        Q.     Now, if you could turn to the third page of that

25   exhibit entitled, "A brief rail loop history."  If you could
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 1   take a look at the second entry under 2012.  It states, "BNSF

 2   and UP enter agreements with city to access Horn Rapids spur,

 3   agree to not switch cars at Center Parkway."

 4               Do you see that?

 5        A.     That is correct.

 6        Q.     All right.  Now, those agreements were agreements

 7   that allowed those two railroads to actually run on the Horn

 8   Rapids spur, correct?

 9        A.     Those were track use agreements, yes.

10        Q.     Track use agreements.  And as part of those track

11   use agreements, each of those railroads, the BN and the UP,

12   agreed, in addition to not switching cars at Center Parkway,

13   they also agreed to not oppose the pending petition that we're

14   here about today to build a Center Parkway crossing, correct?

15        A.     That is my understanding, yes.

16        Q.     Now, at this location where the proposed Center

17   Parkway crossing is to be built, you understand that

18   previously there were four tracks, correct?

19        A.     I don't know the number of tracks that were at the

20   Center Parkway crossing.

21        Q.     Did you know there were tracks that were located

22   there that were actually owned by the Union Pacific?

23        A.     Yes.

24        Q.     Are you aware that the city entered into an

25   arrangement with Union Pacific to acquire -- not only to have
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 1   the Union Pacific move its interchange point, but also to

 2   acquire the land on which those tracks were located?

 3        A.     I'm aware of it.

 4        Q.     Okay.  Can you tell us how much the City of

 5   Richland paid for that bundle of rights, the right to not have

 6   UP oppose this petition, the right to remove the interchange

 7   point, and the right to the land on which those rails were

 8   located?

 9        A.     I cannot.  I don't know what that number is.

10        Q.     It would seem strange to me that you, as the

11   economic development manager, would not know that number.  Is

12   there some reason why you don't know it?

13        A.     Well, I did know it.  I don't recall it now.

14        Q.     Is it more than a million dollars?

15        A.     I -- I know it's in the million arena,

16   approximately.  I don't -- and that's a rough recollection on

17   my part.

18        Q.     All right.  Now, if you would turn to the next

19   page.  It is entitled, "Why do we want a rail loop?"  You make

20   reference there to two regional economic engines, technology

21   and agriculture, correct?

22        A.     Correct.

23        Q.     And the technology that you're referring to is at

24   least based in part on the Hanford facility?

25        A.     At least in part, yes.
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 1        Q.     And the agriculture that you refer to is based

 2   upon the irrigated land agriculture that basically surrounds

 3   this area, correct?

 4        A.     Correct.

 5        Q.     Now, you state, then, "North Richland" -- and by

 6   that, I'm assuming you mean the northern area of Richland?

 7        A.     Uh-huh.

 8        Q.     Is that correct?

 9        A.     That's correct, yes.

10        Q.     "Has competitive advantage with dual rail service,

11   both BNSF and UP."

12               Do you see that?

13        A.     Yes.

14        Q.     And you've been aware of that for a number of

15   years, haven't you?

16        A.     Yes.

17        Q.     Okay.  And in fact, you were present when the Port

18   of Benton's rail consultant, Tangent, Ann-Marie Lundberg from

19   Tangent, made a presentation to the city council members in a

20   session before the city council meeting last week, or on

21   November 5th, in which the details were discussed about

22   upgrading the Port of Benton rail to handle more rail traffic,

23   correct?

24        A.     Correct.

25        Q.     In fact, you introduced her to that -- to speak to
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 1   that assembly, correct?

 2        A.     I did, yes.

 3        Q.     And she made the point that, in that presentation,

 4   that, first of all, BNSF and UP are the two largest class 1

 5   railroads in the country, correct?

 6        A.     I don't have her presentation in front of me, so I

 7   can't -- I can't --

 8        Q.     You don't recall that?

 9        A.     I don't recall the specifics of her presentation,

10   no.

11        Q.     Well, isn't it also true that in addition to

12   having dual rail service, the northern Richland area also has

13   land available for industrial development adjacent to rail?

14        A.     Yes, it does.

15        Q.     And that makes the Horn Rapids Industrial Park, as

16   you call it -- well, you don't call it that.  That makes the

17   Horn Rapids Industrial Park an attractive place for businesses

18   to locate that will be serviced by rail?

19        A.     We certainly hope so, yes.

20        Q.     And part of what you do is to, in fact, attract

21   those businesses, based upon those attributes, correct?

22        A.     Yes.

23        Q.     And you then go on to say that "A rail loop

24   provides an attractor for agricultural investments, lower

25   input pricing, provides for inventory diversity, creates
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 1   arbitrage opportunities for exports, lowers shipping costs of

 2   mid Columbia products."

 3               Do you see that?

 4        A.     Yes, I do.

 5        Q.     And that is all attributes that would pertain to a

 6   rail loop that would be constructed in the Horn Rapids

 7   Industrial Park area, correct?

 8        A.     Correct.

 9        Q.     So, in fact, the City of Richland -- let me

10   withdraw that question.

11               The next page, which for some reason I'm not

12   exactly sure why it got copied the way it did, but the heading

13   seems to have gotten blotted out.  Project at something?

14        A.     Project-at-a-Glance was the title of that, and

15   there's animations in the PowerPoint.  So as we went through

16   the slides, certain photos would come up or diagrams would

17   come up.

18        Q.     All right.  So you described what you referred to

19   as deal drivers, an accessible rail loop, some city control,

20   encourage development, an out clause, limit the risk, and the

21   deal has to stand on its own.

22               Correct?

23        A.     Correct.

24        Q.     And the deal that you eventually put together with

25   the company that is going to construct this rail loop, do you
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 1   believe that it has all of those deal driver elements in it?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     Now, you're describing the deal here as involving

 4   the transfer of 25 acres.  We're talking about the sale of 25

 5   acres of land, correct?

 6        A.     We use the term Washington Transfer as shorthand

 7   for Central Washington Transfer Terminal, LLC, which is the

 8   company that I believe we -- that purchase and sale agreement

 9   was with.  I think I have the name correct.

10        Q.     I'm going to show you what's been marked as

11   Exhibit KJ-14-X.  Is that right, KJ-14?

12                   MS. PHOTIDES:  Uh-huh.

13                   MR. PETIT:  Okay.

14        Q.     We obtained that document by going to the City of

15   Richland's website and downloading the documentation that was

16   posted there in connection with last night's city council

17   meeting.

18               You understand that the City of Richland posted

19   that information to make the public aware of the contracts

20   that the city was proposing to enter into, correct?

21        A.     Correct.

22        Q.     And so do you believe that the information that

23   was posted on the website was accurate to the extent possible?

24        A.     Yes.

25        Q.     Last night there was a city council meeting, and
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 1   there was a vote on whether or not to approve the contracts

 2   that are contained in that exhibit, correct?

 3        A.     Correct.

 4        Q.     What was the result of that vote?

 5        A.     It was 7-0 in favor of having the city manager

 6   execute and take other actions as necessary to sign and

 7   execute the agreements.

 8        Q.     Okay.

 9        A.     Though I would add, as Mr. King pointed out, there

10   was two agreements with American Rock Products that were

11   modified slightly from what was provided in the council

12   packet.  That information was provided to council in the

13   council meeting and during the presentation itself.

14        Q.     All right.  So this package consists of, the

15   package of agreements consists of, first, a lease to what you

16   referred to as WT or WAT, which is actually Central Washington

17   Transfer Terminal, LLC.

18               That's one of the elements of this package,

19   correct?

20        A.     Correct.

21        Q.     Package of deals.  And that lease is set forth in

22   Exhibit KJ-14-X, correct?

23        A.     Yes.

24        Q.     That's the one you have in front of you?

25        A.     Yes.
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 1        Q.     Were there any modifications made to this lease

 2   when it was voted on and approved by the city council?

 3        A.     No, there was not.

 4        Q.     All right.  Now, this is a 15-year lease, correct?

 5        A.     Correct.

 6        Q.     And the purpose of the lease is to give a rental

 7   interest or a leasehold interest to Central Washington

 8   Transfer Terminal, upon which it will construct a rail loop,

 9   correct?

10        A.     Correct.

11        Q.     And if we could turn to Exhibit A, which is number

12   stamped at the bottom, Gary, page 27?

13        A.     Uh-huh.

14        Q.     Okay.  If we could have that on the screen.  Okay.

15   Now, is this a depiction of the property that is going to be

16   used under leasehold interest by Central Washington Transfer

17   Terminal to construct a loop track?

18        A.     This is an approximate depiction, yes.

19        Q.     And what is the approximate footage of this track?

20        A.     I don't -- don't know.

21        Q.     If you look at page 1 of that agreement, paragraph

22   1.1, it makes reference to 8400 feet of rail loop.  Is that

23   approximately correct?

24        A.     That would be approximately correct.

25        Q.     And that's adequate enough rail facility to
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 1   accommodate unit trains, correct?

 2        A.     Correct.

 3        Q.     In fact, that's the purpose of this facility is to

 4   take unit trains and unload them, to transload the contents

 5   for transport someplace else, correct?

 6        A.     Yes.

 7        Q.     Now, in addition to the lease, there's also a

 8   purchase agreement whereby the same company, Central

 9   Washington Transfer, purchases 25 acres of land within the

10   loop and also adjacent to the loop.

11               Correct?

12        A.     Correct.

13        Q.     And that land is shown up here on the exhibit,

14   lease Exhibit A, under purchase property 18 acres, and then

15   below, within blue, purchase property seven acres, is that

16   right?

17        A.     That's right.

18        Q.     So the intent is for this company, Central

19   Washington Transfer, to actually construct facilities on that

20   property that it owns for its use in transloading and other

21   operations, correct?

22        A.     Correct.

23        Q.     Now, in connection with this rail loop, is there

24   -- if you would take a look at paragraph 2.6 on page 10.  If

25   you look at paragraph 2 --
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 1        A.     Yes.

 2        Q.     -- that reads, "The lessee shall, within 18 months

 3   of the effective date of this lease, construct and build an

 4   operational rail loop track on the premises, at lessee's sole

 5   cost and expense, as generally shown on Exhibit A," which

 6   we've just looked at.

 7               Correct?

 8        A.     Correct.

 9        Q.     So the city is anticipating that within 18 months,

10   there will be an active rail loop at this location in the Horn

11   Rapids Industrial Park to handle unit trains?

12        A.     Correct.

13        Q.     Now, in connection with the cargos that these unit

14   trains are anticipated to handle, the nature of the goods that

15   are being brought in, the nature of the commodities and so

16   forth, there is an Exhibit B to this agreement, which is page

17   28, numbered at the bottom, called "permitted uses."

18               Do you have that in front of you?

19        A.     I believe it's -- oh, yes, I see where you have

20   the 28.  Yes, I have that in front of me.

21        Q.     Okay.  So that's a pretty extensive list.  It

22   includes ag products, general categories of agricultural

23   related products and non-agricultural related.  So what this

24   list is addressing is what the lessee, who's going to run the

25   rail loop, will be able to have as cargo in the unit trains
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 1   that it brings into this facility, correct?

 2        A.     As part of this lease, yes.

 3        Q.     As part of the lease, yes.  So that's -- these

 4   uses are identified as cargos that the lessee will be

 5   permitted to accept at this facility --

 6        A.     Yes.

 7        Q.     -- correct?  And in addition to the ag products

 8   and general categories and non-ag related --

 9        A.     I'm sorry, can we step back?

10        Q.     Yes.

11        A.     You said permitted, and I just want to point out

12   that by the lease it would be permitted.  There's other

13   activities that some of these commodities may need to

14   undertake to be permitted for the facilities to be

15   constructed.  And those permits may also be issued by the

16   city, but this wouldn't guarantee that those permits would be

17   provided.

18        Q.     It wouldn't -- I'm sorry?

19        A.     The lease doesn't guarantee that a facility that

20   could accept these products would be permitted.  So it's that

21   the lease would allow those.  So I just wanted to correct that

22   terminology.

23        Q.     I understand.  So that if a company, either

24   Central Washington Transfer or some other company, erected the

25   appropriate facilities within or adjacent to this loop to be
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 1   able to handle these products, and those construction -- that

 2   construction was permitted by the city under its construction

 3   permit arm --

 4        A.     Uh-huh.

 5        Q.     -- then these, these types of products would be

 6   coming into that loop?

 7        A.     That is correct.

 8        Q.     Okay.  And among the items that is listed here is

 9   containerized items for companies such as Wal-Mart, Target,

10   Costco, etc.

11               Do you see that?

12        A.     Yes.

13        Q.     And in addition to that, there are another

14   category consisting of fuels, ethanol and diesel in

15   particular.

16               Do you see that?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     So it's your understanding that provided the

19   companies who are going to be accepting these types of goods

20   comply with the city's requirements regarding the construction

21   that they have to do, that the rail loop will be allowed to

22   accept these kinds of goods at its location in the Horn Rapids

23   Industrial Park, correct?

24        A.     Correct.

25        Q.     We're talking about a substantial investment on
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 1   the part of the people who are going to build the loop to

 2   begin with, correct?

 3        A.     Yes.

 4        Q.     And we're also talking about a substantial

 5   investment on the part of people who will locate within the

 6   loop in order to be able to accept these various types of

 7   products that are listed on Exhibit B to this agreement,

 8   correct?

 9        A.     We would hope so.

10        Q.     And so the city is looking to maximize its

11   investment, maximize its use of this rail loop to the extent

12   that it possibly can, correct?

13        A.     I would say the city is looking to maximize its

14   use of land in the industrial park to generate or secure those

15   investments, yes.

16        Q.     To secure those investments which will, in turn,

17   benefit the economy of the city, correct?

18        A.     Correct.

19        Q.     Of the citizens of the city, correct?

20        A.     Correct.

21        Q.     And in turn, will generate additional rail

22   traffic?

23        A.     Yes.

24        Q.     Is there anything in this lease that puts a limit

25   on the number of rail -- of trains that can be accepted at
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 1   this facility in any period of time?

 2        A.     No.

 3        Q.     If you would look at the page in Exhibit JD-38-X

 4   that you have in front of you that is entitled, this is your

 5   PowerPoint presentation, the one that's entitled, "21-acre

 6   lease," do you see that?

 7        A.     Yes, I do.

 8        Q.     Is that -- are the elements contained in there

 9   still a fair representation of the lease that was approved for

10   signature by the city council last night?

11        A.     The 21 acres, which was an estimate, has been

12   scaled up to a 25-acre estimate.  That would be the first

13   bullet point.  So with that exception, I believe, yes, this is

14   an accurate depiction of what is in the lease.

15        Q.     It's a summary, but it's a summary of key elements

16   of that lease, correct?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     And one of the key elements of that lease is that

19   it requires the operators of the loop to allow BNSF and UP

20   access?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     Correct?

23        A.     Correct.

24        Q.     Now, if you would turn to the page entitled, "Deal

25   flow."  I think that's a couple pages on.  Was this your
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 1   attempt to give some kind of a rough timeline to the flow and

 2   the lease and sale and the construction of both the rail loop

 3   and the infrastructure?

 4        A.     Yes.  In addition, the interrelated nature of the

 5   agreements, of the five agreements that were passed by

 6   council.

 7        Q.     Okay.  Well, there's some agreements with American

 8   Rock that have to do with freeing up the land that it

 9   currently owns --

10        A.     Uh-huh.

11        Q.     -- and is mining so that it can be used as part of

12   this loop.  I'm -- I'm not really interested in that as part

13   of my question.  What I am interested in is the lease on which

14   the rail loop will be constructed and the land that is to be

15   purchased by not only Central Washington Transfer, but also

16   potentially others to locate on or near the rail loop.

17               That's on the left side of your deal flow,

18   correct?

19        A.     Correct.

20        Q.     Okay.  So you've got a 30-day due diligence period

21   after executing a PSA with Washington Terminal?

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit?

23                   MR. PETIT:  Yes.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I want to

25   interrupt just to see if -- I think I know where we're going
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 1   with this testimony.  And I know you're laborly laying the

 2   foundation to get to that ultimate point.

 3                   MR. PETIT:  Yes.

 4                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I will

 5   liberally overrule objections to foundation if we could just

 6   get to that final point.

 7                   MR. PETIT:  All right.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And get Mr.

 9   Ballew back to city hall.  If counsel sees an objection that

10   has to be made to foundation, please make it.  But they're not

11   itching to object, and I'd rather just see what's the ultimate

12   point we're driving to.

13                   MR. PETIT:  The ultimate point we're driving

14   to is this question, Judge.

15        Q.     Do you anticipate that this rail loop will be

16   online within the 18-month period as spelled out in the lease?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     And online, operational, receiving trains, unit

19   trains, at this facility, correct?

20        A.     Correct.

21        Q.     I asked you whether there was any limitation on

22   the number of trains that can be accepted at this rail loop

23   in the lease, and you said there was none.  Are you aware of

24   any other limitations on the number of trains that will be

25   operated to this rail loop that have been agreed to by the
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 1   operator of the rail loop?

 2        A.     I'm -- I'm not aware of any limitations or

 3   agreements to limit.

 4        Q.     I'm going to show you Exhibit JD-11-X.  And we're

 5   shifting again back to the ConAgra facility.  Do you recognize

 6   these drawings as depictions of proposed rail construction to

 7   service that ConAgra facility?

 8        A.     I would recognize them as such.

 9        Q.     And so something along the nature of what's shown

10   in Exhibit JD-11-X is going to have to be constructed in order

11   to service that ConAgra facility, correct?

12        A.     Something along the lines of that, correct.

13        Q.     Multiple tracks?

14        A.     We believe so.  I, again, would say that the

15   tracks -- that the tracks shown in the upsidedown L shape were

16   based on input from that first third-party that's no longer

17   associated with the project.  We do not have a rail design

18   from the second third-party, or the third-party, though we do

19   believe that we will be constructing the -- what I'll call the

20   passing track, which is shown in the interestingly shaped

21   area.

22        Q.     All right.  And you're referring to page 1 of this

23   exhibit?

24        A.     I am referring to page 1, yes.

25        Q.     And that's up on the screen here.  By the passing
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 1   track, are you referring to --

 2        A.     Proposed track A, and I believe it's highlighted

 3   in green or shown in green.

 4        Q.     This on the screen?

 5        A.     Yes.

 6        Q.     Okay.  And that's in order to provide a passing

 7   track to allow trains to operate on Horn Rapids spur, but also

 8   to operate into the ConAgra facility, correct?

 9        A.     Correct.

10        Q.     And in addition to that, there is, on page 3 of

11   this exhibit, proposed rail to service the actual facility

12   itself, correct?

13        A.     Correct, with the stipulation that this is the

14   design of the first third party who is no longer associated

15   with this project, so --

16        Q.     Well, is that -- I'm sorry.

17        A.     We would expect multiple tracks to service this

18   facility, based on its operations.

19        Q.     Whether it's the original designer or not, it's

20   going to be something that is going to require multiple tracks

21   coming in and multiple trains coming in, correct?

22        A.     Yes.

23        Q.     Do you know why ConAgra chose or elected to plan

24   to construct this facility at this location?

25        A.     They're -- I'm trying to recall.  Part of it would
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 1   have been its central location, I believe part of it would

 2   have been the central location to its plants that it's

 3   expecting this facility to serve.  I would also guess that, as

 4   you look through this purchase and sale agreement, there was

 5   actually a proposed slot of land.  ConAgra Lamb Weston bought

 6   property at Columbia Point from the City of Richland back in

 7   2008, I believe, and they were going to build an office

 8   building there, and they determined that after, for whatever

 9   reasons, recession and whatever else, they determined they

10   were not.

11               So they had this land that they had already paid

12   for that was also within the city of Richland, and I would

13   guess that would play a part in it.  And I would guess the

14   other items that we talked about in the presentation of what

15   we think makes Horn Rapids Industrial Park a good location to

16   do business for a third-party.

17        Q.     And I appreciate you telling me about the reasons

18   why it makes sense to put that facility there.  But you are

19   aware also that ConAgra was, in fact, going to consolidate a

20   number of cold storage facilities into this cold storage

21   facility, thereby holding a greater volume in this facility

22   than it did in the numbers of facilities it was consolidating,

23   correct?

24        A.     Yes.

25                   MR. PETIT:  That's all I have for this
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 1   witness, Your Honor.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Anything from

 3   the city?

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Very

 5   briefly.

 6   

 7   

 8                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

 9   

10   BY MR. DIJULIO:

11        Q.     Mr. Ballew, talking about the Central Washington

12   Transfer Terminal facility, the Washington Transfer Terminal

13   facility, there is already a Washington Transfer Terminal

14   facility in the Horn -- general Horn Rapids area, is that

15   correct?

16        A.     The principals of Central Washington Transfer

17   Terminal, LLC also own property in the Horn Rapids Industrial

18   Park where they conduct this activity.

19        Q.     Okay.  And so is this a new facility to replace

20   the existing facility, or is it an additional facility so

21   there will be two operating facilities?

22        A.     That would be up to Central Washington Transfer

23   Terminal on how they do that.  We believe that much of the

24   business that's currently conducted on their existing property

25   will be switched to this property, but that, again, is their
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 1   business case to make.

 2        Q.     Okay.  And is that existing facility rail served?

 3        A.     Yes.

 4        Q.     And has that facility received unit trains

 5   currently?

 6        A.     Currently I'm not aware of unit trains serving it.

 7        Q.     Has it received unit trains in the past?

 8        A.     It has received -- the facility is served by a

 9   small rail loop that requires the unit train to be broken

10   apart and then -- and then off-loaded and then, you know, next

11   set of cars brought in and off-loaded.  And so in the past, it

12   was considered -- it did -- unit trains were brought in

13   through town, came up north into north Richland, were broken

14   apart somewhere in north Richland, and then they'd go into

15   that facility.

16        Q.     Okay.  And that has been the subject -- that other

17   loop has been the subject of prior testimony.  You understand

18   that other smaller loop to be the existing TCRY loop within

19   the Horn Rapids industrial area?

20        A.     Yes.

21        Q.     Okay.  Now, with the new proposed Central

22   Washington Transfer Terminal facility, has the City of

23   Richland determined what if the maximum, most optimistic

24   development scenario arising out of these agreements comes

25   through, the number of unit trains that would be anticipated?
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 1        A.     We believe operationally the track will be limited

 2   to an average of two and a half trains per week.

 3        Q.     And when you say two and a half trains per week,

 4   you're talking about a total of five trips, two and a half in,

 5   two and a half out, or one per day?

 6        A.     Approximately, yes.

 7        Q.     Okay.  And sitting here today, you don't know

 8   whether there will continue to be trains serviced to the other

 9   facility operated by Central Washington Transfer Terminal?

10        A.     I do not know, no.

11        Q.     In your testimony, you also talked about ConAgra

12   facilities.

13        A.     (Nodded head affirmatively).

14        Q.     Let's -- I want to ask you to be precise about

15   this now.  Is there an operating ConAgra facility in the Horn

16   Rapids area?

17        A.     Not within Horn Rapids, but there is a Lamb Weston

18   French fry plant south of Highway 240.  And adjacent to that

19   plant is a Henningsen Cold Storage facility, it actually kind

20   of blends right into the plant, and so that -- we currently

21   have a cold storage which is within the Horn Rapids general

22   area.

23        Q.     Within the general area.  And are those facilities

24   rail served?

25        A.     Yes, they are.
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 1        Q.     And do you know if there is current rail service

 2   in or out of those facilities?

 3        A.     Yes, there is.

 4        Q.     And what do you understand that rail service to

 5   be?

 6        A.     Likely oil containers for canola oil, for fry oil,

 7   as well as I would guess refrigerated cars for French fries.

 8        Q.     And are those unit trains?

 9        A.     No, they're not.

10        Q.     Okay.  And do you know how frequently those trains

11   service that particular Lamb Weston and cold storage facility?

12        A.     No, I don't.

13        Q.     Now, you talked about a different ConAgra

14   facility, the -- is ConAgra under contract with -- has ConAgra

15   actually purchased property from the city yet?

16        A.     They -- not in Horn Rapids, they have not

17   purchased.  We're under a purchase and sale agreement.

18        Q.     Okay.  And have they -- the city has not closed on

19   that agreement yet?

20        A.     No.  The agreement needs to close by January 20th

21   of 2014 or it's no longer.

22        Q.     And is that property that may be developed in the

23   future by ConAgra?

24        A.     Yes.

25        Q.     And what would -- what's the intended use for that
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 1   facility were it to be closed?

 2        A.     So it --

 3        Q.     Were the deal to be closed.

 4        A.     So we have a purchase and sale agreement with

 5   ConAgra for 80 acres.  On that 80 acres, they would contract

 6   with a third party and may actually assign the agreement to a

 7   third party who would own, operate, and construct what's

 8   called an automated cold -- or what we refer to as an

 9   automated cold storage warehouse.

10        Q.     Okay.

11        A.     This automated warehouse is actually a change in

12   business practice for Lamb Weston.  There would be some

13   consolidation of other cold storage facilities in the

14   immediate area, and then that facility uses -- it's all

15   robotic.  It's actually quite a large facility.  It's about a

16   hundred feet tall and uses automated cranes and -- to control

17   the inventory better.

18               So -- so it basically allows ConAgra better

19   inventory -- or Lamb Weston better inventory control and

20   better logistics by utilizing this facility.  They use a

21   similar type of facility over in Europe, and so they're trying

22   to bring that model here to the United States.

23        Q.     And when you use the phrase -- you're referring to

24   Lamb Weston and ConAgra.  Are they the same company?

25        A.     Lamb Weston is a wholly owned subsidiary of
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 1   ConAgra.  The formal title is ConAgra Lamb Weston Foods, Inc.

 2        Q.     Okay.

 3        A.     And that is their division.  So we will say,

 4   around here we'll say ConAgra, we'll say Lamb Weston, and we

 5   usually interchange those.

 6        Q.     If, in the future, that facility on the 80 acres

 7   is constructed, has there been any projection by the city,

 8   again, you know, assuming the best scenario development,

 9   employment, full occupancy, and the rest, of train traffic to

10   that particular facility?

11        A.     We have a car estimate that I had provided.

12        Q.     The 30 cars?

13        A.     30 cars, but I don't know how that would relate to

14   number of trains.  It depends on how many --

15        Q.     That's the only information you have with respect

16   to demand that might occur as a result of this proposed but

17   yet to be completed facility?

18        A.     That's correct.

19        Q.     Thank you.  The current Central Washington

20   Transfer facility operates, when it does receive product by

21   rail, as rail in and truck out, is that correct?

22        A.     When it receives product by rail, yes, it is rail

23   in and truck out.

24        Q.     How long has the City of Richland been working to

25   attract tenants, purchasers, developers, to this area?
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 1        A.     Well, it would be -- I think the first Horn Rapids

 2   master plan for the industrial park area was developed in the

 3   1990s.  It may have gone back further than that.

 4        Q.     Lots of land still out there available?

 5        A.     Yeah, I think the park is, industrial park's

 6   roughly 2,000 acres, with I believe our estimate's around 1200

 7   acres is still available for development.  That's not taking

 8   into account the deals that may be on the table and ready to

 9   go.

10        Q.     So counting as already contracted, there still

11   remains 1200 acres?

12        A.     If you counted in the contracts that have been

13   discussed here, the ConAgra, which is 80 acres, the lease of

14   21, 25, the purchase of an additional 25, so that puts you at

15   130 acres, so roughly 1070 acres still remain.

16        Q.     Okay.  Thank you.  So about half is still

17   available?

18        A.     Yes, roughly half.

19                   MR. DIJILIO:  Okay.  That's all I have.

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Commission

21   staff, any questions for this witness?

22                   MR. SMITH:  No questions.

23   

24   

25   
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 1                            EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:

 4        Q.     Mr. Ballew, there was reference to an 18-month

 5   time frame in which the facilities would have to be

 6   constructed.  Has the start date to measure that 18 months

 7   been triggered by last night's city council vote?

 8        A.     No, it would be triggered by execution of the

 9   lease.  If you look at the deal flow that was provided, the

10   purchase and sale agreement gets signed first, due diligence,

11   then the lease agreement gets signed.

12        Q.     And is that lease agreement, is there a deadline

13   for that signature?

14        A.     Yes.  And we -- I would have to review the

15   agreement, but we tried to tie -- so you execute the purchase

16   and sale agreement, a time clock starts ticking on the lease,

17   and you execute the lease, and then a time clock starts

18   ticking on closing on the purchase and sale agreement.

19        Q.     So you mentioned that the lease with ConAgra would

20   have to be closed by the 20th of January next year?

21        A.     That's the purchase and sale agreement --

22        Q.     Sorry, purchase and sale.

23        A.     -- for 80 acres, and that would have to occur by

24   January 20th, 2014.

25        Q.     Is that connected with the lease execution date as
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 1   well?

 2        A.     No.

 3        Q.     Separate?

 4        A.     Those are totally separate.

 5        Q.     What's your ballpark figure of when the 18-month

 6   clock might start ticking?

 7        A.     Should execute soon.  We're expecting closing of

 8   all agreements, as you step down on that deal flow, we've put

 9   a date in of February 14th, 2014.  One of our agreements with

10   American Rock, that needs to be closed by then.  So we would

11   expect the lease agreement to be signed in, at the latest, in

12   January of 2014.

13        Q.     So we're thinking July or August of 2015, from

14   there would be 18 months?

15        A.     That would be the 18 months, yes, roughly.

16        Q.     Is that about when the city anticipates any new

17   rail traffic, whether it's replacement or new rail traffic,

18   would begin?

19        A.     That would be the outside envelope of the lease

20   agreement.  I would say our expectations are that it would

21   occur sooner than that, that the construction of the rail

22   could occur sooner, but I would still expect January of 2015,

23   maybe the beginning of 2015, is when we could see a fully

24   operational railroad.

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank

0377

 1   you.  Mr. Petit, does that raise any additional questions?

 2                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor.  I think you

 3   covered that thoroughly.  I have nothing else.

 4                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Any other

 5   questions for this witness, then?

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  No.  Thank you, Judge.

 7                   MR. SMITH:  No.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 9   Thank you, Mr. Ballew, for your time.

10               A little admitting of exhibit housework to take

11   care of.  The prior witness, we had a video that was shown, it

12   was JD-39-X.  Were there any objections to that coming into

13   the record?  I believe a DVD was supplied to all parties.

14                   MR. DIJULIO:  Excuse me?

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  The video

16   that we saw before the lunch break, we hadn't admitted that

17   yet.  Were there any objections to the DVD?

18                   MR. DIJULIO:  We produced it at their request.

19   We did not propose it.  If he wants to make copies of it and

20   mark it --

21                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not

22   suggesting it was.  I'm just asking, any objections to

23   admitting it to the --

24                   MR. DIJULIO:  Oh, absolutely none.

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right. I
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 1   believe the DVDs were already reproduced by TCRY.  All right.

 2   So 39-X is admitted.

 3               Let's go back over the ones we just had.  I

 4   believe JD-9-X and 11-X were introduced for the first time.

 5   Any objections to those two?

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  None for the state.

 7                   MR. SMITH:  None.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  JD-9-X

 9   and 11-X are admitted.  I believe the only other one we had

10   was the PowerPoint presentation.  That's JD-38-X.  Any

11   objections to that one?

12                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the city.

13                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Petit?

14                   MR. PETIT:  Well, on your exhibit sheet, Judge

15   Torem, on JD-38-X --

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, it

17   should say Port of Benton?

18                   MR. PETIT:  Yes.

19                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I confused my

20   two port projects, so as I was typing busily -- so I've

21   already caught that error this week.  I will modify that in

22   the final exhibit list.  If you catch any other ones, please

23   let me know.  It was a bit of typing and starting and stopping

24   last week, getting this put together.  So if parties do find

25   typographical errors, please bring it to my attention.

0379

 1               Mr. Petit, were there any other exhibits that

 2   needed to be addressed at this time?

 3                   MR. PETIT:  I do not -- KG-14-X is already in

 4   evidence?

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, it is.

 6                   MR. PETIT:  Okay.  Those are the only ones at

 7   this time, Your Honor.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 9   Let's take a five-minute break.  Actually, make it ten

10   minutes.  We'll come back with your last witness, Mr.

11   Peterson.

12                   MR. PETIT:  Fine, Your Honor.

13                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

14   We're at recess for the next ten minutes.

15                                                  (Short recess).

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Counsel, I

17   think we're ready to go back on the record.  I have Mr.

18   Peterson here ready to swear him in.

19                           RANDOLPH PETERSON

20   called as a witness by the Respondent, being first duly sworn

21   to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

22   was examined and testified as follows:

23                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Please have a

24   seat.  State and spell your name for the record.

25                   THE WITNESS:  Randolph, R-a-n-d-o-l-p-h,
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 1   Peterson, P-e-t-e-r-s-o-n.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Sir, if

 3   you'll try to project your voice a little bit.  Mr. Petit will

 4   introduce, I think, your pre-file testimony, and then we'll

 5   get you ready for cross-examination.

 6   

 7   

 8                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

 9   

10   BY MR. PETIT:

11        Q.     Mr. Peterson, I'm showing you what's been marked

12   as Exhibit RVP-1T, which is labeled your pre-file testimony of

13   Randolph V. Peterson.  Could you please examine that and make

14   sure that it is correct.

15                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

16        A.     It is.

17                   MR. PETIT:  Judge, there are some very limited

18   issues I would like to address with him, based on things that

19   came up at the hearing yesterday.

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

21        Q.     (BY MR. PETIT:)  Mr. Peterson, you were here for

22   testimony yesterday afternoon, at least part of it, correct?

23        A.     Part of it.

24        Q.     And you heard testimony about the issue of a

25   passing track at the Center Parkway crossing location where
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 1   there -- this petition seeks to have an at-grade crossing

 2   constructed?

 3               You heard that testimony?

 4        A.     Yes.

 5        Q.     And you're familiar with the layout of the track

 6   because you are the president of TCRY, correct?

 7        A.     Yes.

 8        Q.     And can you tell me whether that passing track is

 9   used currently by TCRY?

10        A.     It is.

11        Q.     Tell me how it is used by TCRY.

12        A.     Well, mostly it is used to, when either the BN's

13   coming in or we're going out, or we're coming in and they're

14   going out, the other railroad gets on the passing track and

15   could come by, or they go by.

16        Q.     Is that a frequent occurrence?

17        A.     Very frequent.

18        Q.     And when that happens, what has to be done with

19   the train crews in order to facilitate moving onto the passing

20   track, whether it's BN moving onto the passing track to allow

21   TCRY to pass, or the other way around?

22        A.     Well, Tri-City Railroad is the operator of the

23   railroad, of the Port of Benton railroad.  So we have the

24   responsibility of the management of the traffic, among other

25   things, but as it relates to traffic.
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 1               So BN calls in, radios in to us before they have

 2   permission to enter.  So when -- and before they call in to

 3   us, they've called in to the UP to get permission to get on to

 4   the UP, because the BN can't get to us without going onto the

 5   UP.  So they've received permission from the UP, so they

 6   usually will come to a stop before they get to Richland

 7   junction, which some refer to as Center Parkway, one and the

 8   same for these purposes.  And sometimes they'll hold, we'll

 9   hold them there, most of the time, depending on the situation

10   of the day, most of the time we'll have them come into the

11   passing track, and they'll stop, and they'll wait.

12               So when their train comes in, usually it's a

13   two-man crew, the conductor gets off -- well, before entering

14   the passing track, throws the switch, and the train proceeds.

15   And then he'll throw the switch after the train clears and

16   realign it for the mainline and then get -- walk up and get

17   back on the train, wait for us.  He doesn't have to get back

18   on the train to wait for us, but he does.  We'll pass.  This

19   is on a -- I say we, but one or the other of us coming out or

20   going in in reverse.

21               So once we've cleared, then the train has

22   permission -- our guys will radio in, we'll -- our operations

23   will radio the BN, and the BN then will have permission to

24   proceed.  So they, in most cases, proceed out the other end of

25   the passing track and, of course, stop before they get --
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 1   because the switch will be aligned for the main, and throw the

 2   switch, the conductor will get off, throw the switch, train

 3   will proceed through the switch, the conductor will throw the

 4   switch back to the main and get back on, walk up the train,

 5   get back on the locomotive, and away they go.

 6               Or they're ready to go, and they have, you know,

 7   they might wait -- they will have, receive permission to go

 8   most all the time before they're out on the main.  So that's

 9   what happens.  It doesn't happen every day, but that's how it

10   happens.  Or that's what -- that's what occurs on the passing

11   track.

12        Q.     Do you consider that the maintenance and

13   continuation of that passing track to be essential to both the

14   BN and the TCRY current operations?

15        A.     Absolutely essential.

16        Q.     Now, another matter that was testified to for the

17   first time today, you heard Mr. Ballew's testimony regarding

18   the new 1.5-mile rail loop that was voted on by the city

19   council last night?

20        A.     Yes.

21        Q.     And had you heard that his estimate was that there

22   would be 2.5 unit trains per week coming into this unit train

23   rail, correct?

24        A.     I think he said that was an -- that was something

25   to do with the maximum that they thought that -- that somebody
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 1   figured out that -- I'm not sure whether they said that that

 2   was the maximum that the line, our line would handle or the

 3   maximum that the transloader could operate at, but I did hear

 4   two and a half.

 5        Q.     All right.  Are you familiar -- first of all, how

 6   long have you been in the railroad industry?

 7        A.     Since the mid '90s.

 8        Q.     In various capacities?

 9        A.     Or early '90s, actually.

10        Q.     In various capacities?

11        A.     Yes.

12        Q.     Including what types of operations?

13        A.     Rebuilding railroad equipment initially.  We'd

14   take locomotives and rebuild them, take them down to the bones

15   and rebuild them and put them back together and sell them,

16   lease them, that kind of thing.

17        Q.     And how long have you operated the TCRY?

18        A.     We started -- or I started TCRY in 1999.  And at

19   that time, we were the -- it took us about a year and a half

20   to get approved by the service transportation board, and we

21   got approved.  And for a while there, we were the newest

22   railroad in the country.

23        Q.     And as a result of being in the business of

24   operating TCRY, have you had occasion to have direct

25   conversations with officials and officers and employees of
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 1   both BN, BNSF Railroad, and UP?

 2        A.     Over the years, yes.

 3        Q.     And are you generally familiar with the subject

 4   matter of unit trains unloading at loop tracks?

 5        A.     Yes.

 6        Q.     In your opinion, does a 1.5-mile loop track make

 7   economic sense at two and a half trains per week, in terms of

 8   return on investment?

 9        A.     Well, you know, I -- what's the investment?  I

10   mean, that's a wide open question.  You know, I read in the

11   paper somebody's going to invest a hundred million dollars.

12   So does two and a half trains a week, if that's the max -- you

13   know, it depends on whether they're moving titanium or corn, I

14   guess, but -- I'm not prepared to comment on -- from --

15   whether it makes economic sense or not.

16        Q.     At this particular loop track?

17        A.     I don't think it has anything to do with the loop

18   track, I think it has to do with what they're going to use it

19   for and what kind of capital investment they're going to make.

20        Q.     Okay.  You're familiar with operations at other

21   loop tracks around the country, aren't you?

22        A.     Yes, to some degree.

23        Q.     Okay.  And in connection with those loop track

24   operations -- well, let's back up a second.  The economy

25   involved in the unit train requires quick unloading, correct?
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 1        A.     Doesn't require it, but there's an incentive built

 2   in by the railroads.  If the train is returned within a

 3   specific period of time, there is an incentive, a money

 4   incentive to -- that's built into the transaction.

 5               And that's, you know, the unit train is hauling

 6   one commodity.  It could be a unit train, it could be a

 7   shuttle train, they all don't have to be a hundred cars in

 8   length.  They can be -- they're running unit trains now up to

 9   140 cars in length, okay, so that's -- that's really the unit

10   train of today is 140 cars.

11               Will that loop track out there handle it?  Yeah,

12   it's long enough.  But it depends on what you're moving.  You

13   know, this project, I guess, is approved for diesel fuel.  So,

14   you know, there might be a diesel terminal out there.  That's

15   a more valuable commodity than cow food.  So can that loop

16   track handle it, either one, yes.  Can it handle containers,

17   yes.

18               If you bring containers in and off-load

19   containers, train -- you know, bring in and transload off of a

20   bulk car, put them on a container, which is -- hell, we talked

21   about that years ago and transloading the product off of bulk

22   cars, putting them on containers, moving them over to the

23   ports, okay.  It's a great -- it's done all over the place.

24   But when -- when you have -- when you're doing it at the end

25   of your driveway, in other words, one way in, one way out,
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 1   you're going to have more train traffic.

 2               That's not a bad thing.  We're all for that

 3   project.  I want to -- we're in the railroad business.  Our

 4   primary concern is and has been and will continue to be is

 5   safety and make sure that it's done right.  And, you know,

 6   don't -- you know, so that's -- that's our issue, but --

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Peterson,

 8   I want you to stop because you've lost the track of the

 9   question here.

10               Mr. Petit, was there another question, or are we

11   ready to hand him off for Cross?

12                   MR. PETIT:  I think we're ready to hand him

13   off for Cross.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I'm

15   going to direct your attention to the cities' counselors and

16   see what questions they have and then perhaps the commission

17   staff.

18   

19   

20                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

21   

22   BY MR. DIJULIO:

23        Q.     Mr. Peterson, good afternoon.  I'm going to call

24   your attention to a series of question to the --

25        A.     What's your name?
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 1        Q.     My name is Steve DiJulio.

 2        A.     Thanks, Steve.

 3        Q.     You're welcome.  I'm going to call your attention

 4   to the screen and Google Earth.  And what we're going to do is

 5   start at the Richland junction, and I'm just going to ask you,

 6   for the hearing examiner, just I'll ask you a series of

 7   questions regarding the route for these trains.

 8               So if you could focus, Jeff, on getting down

 9   narrower, focus on the track itself.  A little bit further.

10   Thank you.  That's fine.  Little bit finer, so you can

11   actually see the tracks.  That's fine for now.  All right.

12   Moving it to the east a little bit, please.

13               Now, you recognize that as the approximate area of

14   the beginning of the Richland junction, Mr. Peterson?

15        A.     Where the arrow's at, or where the --

16        Q.     No, no, I'm just asking you --

17        A.     Generally?

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I think, for

19   the record, is this the Columbia Center Boulevard and the loop

20   that goes over the top of the tracks?

21                   MR. DIJULIO:  This is now -- let's go --

22        Q.     Mr. Peterson, this area of the line that we're

23   looking at here.

24        A.     Yeah.

25        Q.     That is not part of Port of Benton property, is
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 1   that correct?

 2        A.     That's owned by the Union Pacific.

 3        Q.     Okay.  And where does -- going to the west a

 4   little bit, Mr. Peters, there's a -- you have the two lines

 5   beginning there, Holiday Inn to the north, Kohl's department

 6   store located there.

 7               Approximately where does your leasehold interest

 8   actually begin?

 9        A.     (Indicating).  About in there.

10        Q.     Okay.  So a short distance to the east of the

11   actual Center Parkway alignment, is that correct?

12        A.     Yes.  I guess if you're talking about the road,

13   the proposed road?

14        Q.     The rail right-of-way.  You begin somewhere in

15   there, and the rest of the track is UP ownership from --

16        A.     Yeah.

17        Q.     -- that point --

18        A.     Yeah.

19        Q.     -- east?

20        A.     But what'd you say about alignment?  You said

21   something about alignment?

22        Q.     Okay.  I said Center Parkway alignment, which you

23   understand will be approximately here (indicating).  Do you

24   understand that, sir, that's what's being proposed?

25        A.     Yeah.  You're proposing a road up there, yeah.
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 1        Q.     Yeah, right where those lines are going.

 2        A.     Yeah.

 3        Q.     All right.  And this is the four lanes, four

 4   tracks that had been the subject of a prior application?

 5        A.     Yes.

 6        Q.     And these are the -- again, we're looking here at

 7   Port of Benton TCRY tracks?

 8        A.     You're right on the passing track, right there.

 9        Q.     But the actual Port of Benton grant from the

10   federal government starts approximately in here (indicating)?

11        A.     I think a little bit farther east there, about in

12   there someplace.

13        Q.     About there (indicating)?

14        A.     Yeah.

15        Q.     Okay.  So everything from this point east operates

16   on UP trackage?

17        A.     Yes.

18                   MR. DIJULIO:  All right.  Let's just run that

19   line, if you would, Mr. Peters, to the east and follow that

20   line.

21        Q.     As we keep going to the east, Mr. Peterson, it's

22   pretty much a straight shot without any service along this

23   corridor, is that correct?

24        A.     What do you mean, service?

25        Q.     I mean, you don't have dock-high doors or stops
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 1   for delivery of train cars along any of this part in the city

 2   of Kennewick, do you?

 3        A.     Not -- you know, we run on that track.

 4        Q.     Well, I know you run on that track.  I'm just

 5   asking, with respect to the actual --

 6        A.     I think there are no customers until you get

 7   downtown Kennewick that are served by rail.

 8        Q.     And you recognize that as the 395 crossing?  I'm

 9   sorry, or is that Edison?

10                   MR. PETERS:  That was Edison.

11                   MR. DIJULIO:  Excuse me.

12        Q.     Go back to the Edison crossing.  The first grade

13   crossing, then, to the east -- by the way, Mr. Peterson,

14   you've been part of this community for a long time, haven't

15   you?

16        A.     Yes.

17        Q.     Okay.  You recognize that as the Edison crossing,

18   the next one to the east?

19        A.     Yes.

20        Q.     And that's a grade crossing?

21        A.     Yes.

22        Q.     Thank you.

23        A.     At-grade crossing.

24        Q.     That's an at-grade crossing.  And do you recall

25   ever having accidents between trains and vehicles at the
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 1   Edison crossing, at least in the time you've been operating

 2   the railroad?

 3        A.     Well, no.  TCRY has not had -- TCRY has not had an

 4   accident, a train accident involving a vehicle where we've

 5   either been hit or hit something, someone or something.  We

 6   have had -- we have about -- we have cars that and trucks that

 7   run through the nine crossings that we have on our line, about

 8   once every two months, so we're always having issues with at

 9   grade crossings, if that's the question.

10               But we don't maintain that crossing.  That's owned

11   by the Union Pacific.  We have not operated on the Union

12   Pacific line for -- for, what, more than maybe a year, because

13   they used to come to Richland junction and interchange with us

14   there.  So with the deal that the city made with the UP, we

15   moved our interchange down to -- we can interchange Kennewick

16   or we're interchanging down as far as Hedges, which is down at

17   Finley.

18        Q.     I want to make sure we understand your testimony,

19   Mr. Peterson.  TCRY exchanges further to the east, and we'll

20   get down there in a few minutes.

21        A.     Got it.

22        Q.     But TCRY does run equipment on UP's line in this

23   alignment, along this rail corridor, isn't that correct?

24        A.     Trains only.

25        Q.     Trains only, yes.  I understand.  Okay.  So that's
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 1   a grade crossing.  You understand that grade crossing's

 2   maintained by UP, but have had no incidents, while -- at least

 3   you're aware, with TCRY trains?

 4        A.     Not -- I'm not speaking for the Union Pacific or

 5   the BN.

 6        Q.     Understood.

 7        A.     Because at the BN also operates on that track.

 8        Q.     Let's go further to the east.  Again, we still

 9   have no service or deliveries or stop areas until we get to

10   Kennewick.  Now we're starting to come into the 395 area, I

11   believe, is that correct?

12                   MR. PETERS:  Getting there.

13        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  Are we still following the

14   alignment correctly, sir?

15        A.     Me?

16        Q.     Yes.

17        A.     Yeah.

18        Q.     This is the UP alignment that you line up with

19   when you are running lines?

20        A.     We're on that line.

21        Q.     Yeah, there's 395 crossing.

22        A.     That's grade separated there.

23        Q.     Yeah.  And then what is this junction here, sir?

24        A.     Oh, that's a spur that -- a switch there.  That's

25   a spur that serves a customer.
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 1        Q.     Okay.  And the main --

 2        A.     More than one customer, but down -- old town

 3   Kennewick.

 4        Q.     Okay.  And then this, is this, again, the TC -- or

 5   the UP line that is --

 6        A.     Yes.

 7        Q.     -- used by TCRY?  And here's another junction, but

 8   this main TCRY or UP, TCRY alignment continues on this route?

 9        A.     That's all -- that's a spur track.

10        Q.     This one is the spur (indicating)?

11        A.     Yeah.  Go down to the arrow there.

12        Q.     That's the spur (indicating)?

13        A.     No, that's the main.

14        Q.     That's the main?  That's the UP line that you

15   would run over to get to the TCRY track, if you know?

16        A.     That's the track --

17        Q.     Which --

18        A.     That's the track that goes to -- to and from

19   Richland junction.

20        Q.     Thank you.  Okay.  And then this line continues to

21   the east and into Kennewick?

22        A.     Yeah.

23        Q.     And are we still on the correct alignment, sir?

24        A.     Yes.

25        Q.     And where do we start into the switching yards?

0395

 1   Are we about there yet?

 2        A.     What do you mean?  In downtown?

 3        Q.     Yeah.  Where are you picking up --

 4        A.     Go back to -- you go back to -- right in

 5   Washington Street.  Not that far.  Right there.  Follow the

 6   arrow.  He's got the arrow right on it.  There you go.

 7        Q.     So you're -- if you're picking up trains or

 8   putting crews on trains for UP  --

 9        A.     There's a passing track that begins right there.

10        Q.     And this is the approximate area (indicating)?

11        A.     Well, that's the exact area.

12        Q.     Okay.  Thank you.  And are you doing any current

13   work with BN?

14        A.     What do you mean by current work?

15        Q.     I mean, are you --

16        A.     That's a UP interchange.

17        Q.     That's a UP interchange.  My question, then, is,

18   are you doing any interchanges with BN, either in the

19   Kennewick area or otherwise?

20        A.     No.

21        Q.     So the only service that you're providing, other

22   than for your own account, is for UP beginning at

23   approximately this location (indicating)?

24        A.     Sometimes -- yeah.  Beginning there.  Sometimes

25   there in Kennewick and sometimes further east.

0396

 1        Q.     Okay.  We're not going to go further to the east,

 2   and we're basically in downtown Kennewick, correct?

 3        A.     Yeah.  And the yard runs east from Washington,

 4   that's a UP yard, and it runs east for a number of blocks.

 5        Q.     Okay.

 6        A.     So you see where we're switching, you see that

 7   North Alder Street?

 8        Q.     Is this North Alder (indicating)?

 9        A.     Right there by the arrow.

10        Q.     Okay.

11        A.     Yeah.  So when we're switching, and that's kind --

12   switching or passing, the gates are down, okay, so that --

13   that street is blocked, while every day, twice a day, for when

14   railroading is going on.  And they -- those gates stay down.

15                   MR. DIJULIO:  Mr. Peters, if you'd take us all

16   the way back, then, to the Center Parkway Richland junction

17   area, please, if you would.

18                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

19                   MR. DIJULIO:  I think you're going to have to

20   go much further north.

21                   MR. PETERS:  Did I go the wrong way?

22                   MR. DIJULIO:  All right.  Thank you.

23        Q.     Okay.  We're going to pick up again at the

24   Richland junction at the TCRY approximate location of the

25   start of your leasehold interest here and then take the TCRY
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 1   line now to the north and west along the alignment.

 2               And while we're going along this alignment, isn't

 3   it true, Mr. Peterson, that there are no services or stops

 4   along this alignment?

 5        A.     Customers?

 6        Q.     Yes.

 7        A.     That's correct.

 8        Q.     And you recognize this as the Steptoe grade

 9   crossing?

10        A.     At-grade crossing.

11        Q.     At-grade crossing, excuse me.

12        A.     Yes.

13        Q.     Thank you.  And then as we again move to the north

14   and west, we're still on the alignment, is that correct?

15        A.     Yes.

16        Q.     And we're paralleling 240 at this point, sir?

17        A.     Yes.

18        Q.     Thank you.  Crossing the Yakima River?

19        A.     Yes.

20                   MR. DIJULIO:  Let's stop there for a minute,

21   if you would, Mr. Peters.

22        Q.     We're getting into north Richland at this point.

23   Do you recognize that, sir?

24        A.     I'm not sure where north Richland begins or ends,

25   but generally, yes.
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 1        Q.     Okay.  I understand.  And do you recognize any of

 2   these properties as properties that TCRY may be serving with

 3   active rail delivery service?

 4        A.     No, I think those are all apartments.

 5        Q.     Okay.  Further to the north.  There's a crossing

 6   here, and this is a grade crossing, is that correct?

 7        A.     We've passed a couple already.

 8        Q.     Yeah, okay.  What grade crossing is this that

 9   we're looking at here?

10        A.     We call it Cemetery.

11        Q.     Okay.

12        A.     Not for any --

13        Q.     Cemetery Road?

14        A.     Yeah, it's just -- not that anyone died there.

15        Q.     Thank you.

16        A.     I mean, as a result of railroading.

17        Q.     Okay.  No incidents that you're aware of at that

18   grade crossing?

19        A.     No, not -- that's not necessarily true.  Incidents

20   as it relates to cars running through gates?

21        Q.     Yes.

22        A.     Then I can't say that that would be true.

23        Q.     Do you have personal knowledge of a car running

24   through the Cemetery Road gate at the TCRY track?

25        A.     I believe that virtually all of our crossing
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 1   incidents are on file at the City of Richland Police

 2   Department.  We report each one --

 3        Q.     And also to the UTC?

 4        A.     Yeah.

 5        Q.     And also to the feds?

 6        A.     Yeah.

 7        Q.     Thank you.  There are gates at that crossing?

 8        A.     Yes.

 9        Q.     Thank you.

10                   MR. DIJULIO:  Mr. Peters, if you would take us

11   to the north.

12        Q.     What is this crossing, sir?

13        A.     Oh, we call it Van Giesen.

14        Q.     Van Giesen crossing.  Approximately what's the

15   distance between SR 240 and the tracks in this proximity, sir?

16        A.     Don't -- I don't know.

17        Q.     Okay.  And that's also a gated warning -- warnings

18   are gated and --

19        A.     Yes.

20        Q.     -- bells at that crossing?  Do you recognize that

21   as a five-lane section in contrast to the two-lane sections

22   being proposed here?

23        A.     What's that?

24        Q.     Strike that question.  Do you know how many lanes

25   of vehicle traffic cross at grade the TCRY line at this
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 1   location?

 2        A.     Generally I think it's two primary going each

 3   direction and probably a turning lane on each.

 4        Q.     Thank you.  Okay.  We can take this further up.

 5   Are we getting into rail service yet for you, sir, along this

 6   area, if you know?

 7        A.     You mean --

 8        Q.     Any direct rail service --

 9        A.     There was a -- there's a transload dock that

10   you've passed that we service.

11        Q.     And what kind of transloading was that for?

12        A.     Oh, just odds and ends stuff.  You know, sometimes

13   boxcars, lumber, roofing materials, salt, that kind of stuff.

14   Not heavy use, but -- we're getting up -- where are we here?

15   Let's see.

16        Q.     We're almost, I think, to your --

17        A.     By the tennis courts.

18        Q.     If I understand correctly.

19        A.     You just crossed -- Steve, I apologize, are you

20   trying to identify the different crossings that we have?

21        Q.     Yeah.

22        A.     That one we would refer to as Airport crossing

23   there.

24        Q.     That's also a grade crossing?

25        A.     At-grade crossing.
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 1        Q.     Thank you.  Gated?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     Thank you.  Okay.

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Further to the north, Mr.

 5   Peters.  Hold on a second so Judge Torem can catch up with us.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.

 7   It's hard to write and Google Earth at the same time.

 8                   MR. DIJULIO:  Yes.  Trying to be efficient.

 9   Okay.  Go ahead, Mr. Peters, take us to the north.

10                   THE WITNESS:  You passed our entrance to

11   ConAgra.

12                   MR. DIJULIO:  Okay.

13        Q.     This line here into ConAgra?

14        A.     Yes.

15        Q.     What's your current -- what's your service been in

16   2013 into ConAgra, if you know, Mr. Peterson?

17        A.     What do you --

18        Q.     How many?

19        A.     Types of products or something?

20        Q.     How many cars, if you know, have been, or trains,

21   to service the ConAgra facility?

22        A.     I gave some projections in my testimony, and I

23   believe that that -- we're about -- we're about 4,000 of the

24   5100 cars.  Of that, ConAgra's probably 60 percent, and their

25   cold storage facility's probably another, you know, 20 -- it's
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 1   about 80 percent.  They're certainly 80 percent of our

 2   business.

 3        Q.     80 percent of the business currently is the

 4   ConAgra?

 5        A.     Of the TCRY.

 6        Q.     Thank you.  So we're back on the TCRY line.  This

 7   is still Port of Benton TCRY.  We haven't gotten to the

 8   Department of Ecology or Department of Energy track yet, have

 9   we?

10        A.     You just -- there's another crossing there called

11   Saint.

12        Q.     Right there (indicating)?

13        A.     Yes.

14        Q.     And then --

15        A.     That's a cross spot only, no gates on Saint.

16        Q.     Okay.

17        A.     And then the next one's 240, which is a state

18   highway.  And that's --

19        Q.     Gated?

20        A.     That's gated and lit.

21                   MR. DIJULIO:  Mr. Peters, if you would --

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So are those

23   both at-grade crossings, even across 240?

24                   THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Uh-huh.  Yes, sir.

25        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  We're getting into some
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 1   additional rail yards up here.  Mr. Peterson, what are we

 2   looking at here?

 3        A.     Uh-huh.  That's true.

 4        Q.     What is that?

 5        A.     Rail yard.

 6        Q.     Okay.  Is that TCRY yard?

 7        A.     Yes, it is.

 8        Q.     Thank you.

 9                   MR. DIJULIO:  A little bit further to the

10   north, if you would, Mr. Peters.  Thank you.

11        Q.     And --

12        A.     That's the -- just so that you know, that's the

13   TCRY rail facility shop.

14        Q.     This is part of the leasehold from the Port of

15   Benton is this building (indicating)?

16        A.     Yes.

17        Q.     Okay.  And that's your shop, and you --

18        A.     That's a rail car locomotive shop there to --

19   right there.  Yeah.

20        Q.     Yeah.  And is this the end of the line at this

21   point, or do you go a little bit further to the north?

22        A.     Oh, we keep going.

23        Q.     What about this line (indicating)?

24        A.     This would be the first leg of the Y, which is the

25   Y track.  So if you go -- if you go left there.
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 1        Q.     To the northwest?

 2        A.     Yeah.  You go left, that would take you on to the

 3   Horn Rapids track.

 4        Q.     Okay.

 5        A.     Owned by the city.  If you keep going straight,

 6   you go up to the Department of Energy track.  A couple more

 7   crossings going that way --

 8        Q.     Okay.

 9        A.     -- and you'll be out at Hanford.

10        Q.     Let's follow that spur to the northwest to see if

11   we can -- if this photograph captures -- and that's the TCRY

12   loop right there (indicating)?

13        A.     Uh-huh, yes.

14        Q.     Okay.  And what facility --

15        A.     Well, it's the one we serve.

16        Q.     Yes.

17        A.     It's owned by my family, but not by Tri-City

18   Railroad Company.

19        Q.     And what is this facility here (indicating)?

20        A.     That is a corn facility.  That facility is owned

21   by the same fellows that are going to do the deal with the

22   city on the big loop.  They own the southern half of the

23   property, and we own the northern -- we still own the

24   northern.  Not TCRY, but --

25        Q.     That's the Central Washington Transfer Terminal
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 1   people?

 2        A.     Yeah.

 3        Q.     And do you have any indication, if they proceed

 4   with the development of the new project with the city, whether

 5   they'll continue to do business here?

 6        A.     No, I don't.

 7        Q.     And are you currently bringing product by train to

 8   that facility?

 9        A.     We've brought a couple trains this year only.

10   They're -- they're bringing -- they're serving it mostly by

11   truck, local corn that they buy locally.

12                   MR. DIJULIO:  Thank you.  Mr. Peters, that's

13   all I have for that.  Thank you, Mr. Peters.

14        Q.     Mr. Peterson, I want to go to your Direct

15   testimony regarding the use of the Richland junction facility

16   as a passing track.  You recognize that it's not used every

17   day, isn't that correct?

18        A.     Correct.

19        Q.     And, in fact, you may go for periods as long as

20   six weeks or two months without using that passing track,

21   isn't that correct?

22        A.     That is not correct.

23        Q.     Okay.  Isn't it true, Mr. Peterson, that you have

24   not used that track for passing since at least October 3rd of

25   this year?
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 1        A.     That's not true.

 2        Q.     Okay.  You have caused to be staged one or more

 3   tank cars on that passing track on a somewhat permanent basis

 4   since October 3rd, haven't you?

 5        A.     That's not true.

 6        Q.     Okay.  Did you direct that a -- that one or more

 7   tank cars be stationed at the passing track in preparation for

 8   this hearing?

 9        A.     That's not true.  Storing cars, Steve, is

10   different than an operating passing track.  We use that

11   passing track every week with the BN.  Not every day, but

12   every week.

13        Q.     So you -- would you know personally whether or not

14   your people have actually maintained the same tank cars on

15   that site since at least October 3rd?

16        A.     Well, tank cars most of the time are always black,

17   but they're not always the same numbers.  I don't know.  Those

18   tank cars most likely are either oil -- either oil -- empty

19   oils or empty tallow cars.

20        Q.     My question is, personally, did you know whether

21   or not there are cars -- those tank cars would have been

22   parked there on that, as you call it, passing track, since

23   October 3rd?

24        A.     Do I know --

25        Q.     Do you know that personally?
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 1        A.     I know that that's not the case.

 2        Q.     I'm going to show you a series of photographs,

 3   sir, that I'll represent to you to be photographs of the

 4   Richland junction beginning on October 3rd and daily,

 5   subsequently, since October 3rd of this year.

 6        A.     Okay.  And, Steve?

 7        Q.     And isn't it true, sir, that you have maintained a

 8   series of tank cars on that siding continuously, beginning

 9   with two cars, spanning to three cars, and subsequently to the

10   four cars that are now crossing the proposed Center Parkway

11   alignment?

12        A.     That's not true.  I can tell you -- I can tell you

13   this, last weekend at the request of the neighborhood, we did

14   a horn test with a locomotive, and I was at Center Parkway for

15   that horn test, at the request of the neighborhood, and those

16   cars weren't there.  So I can get you the records.  I'd be

17   happy to get you the records, but I don't -- it's not there.

18   I'll get you the record of all of the cars by car numbers.

19   There are no car numbers there.  Those are just blank, black

20   tank cars.  That's a terrible assertion.

21        Q.     And it is your position, sir, that those tank cars

22   weren't removed for the horn test last Sunday?

23        A.     I can tell you that the -- that passing track,

24   those tank cars were not where they are -- I don't know.

25   Those tank cars were moved.  You said the tank cars -- I don't
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 1   know what tank cars -- let me be clear.  Let me give you some

 2   tank numbers.  We'll give you the records.  If you're

 3   asserting that -- why would we put tank cars there on a

 4   passing track?

 5        Q.     So these are the same cars that are in the -- or

 6   two of the cars that were in the photograph, and that was

 7   taken last Friday.

 8        A.     Well, they might have been there since last

 9   Friday.

10        Q.     Okay.

11        A.     These would be empty cars that had been unloaded

12   and are returning to service.

13        Q.     There's Thursday before that, November 14th.

14   Here's Wednesday, November 13th, before that.

15        A.     I'm looking at five cars in this photo and four

16   cars in that.  And are you insinuating we don't have a right

17   to use --

18        Q.     Not at all.

19        A.     Oh.

20        Q.     I'm just suggesting --

21        A.     But you suggested --

22        Q.     I'm just asking you if you've been parking cars on

23   that siding track continuously over the last month and a half?

24        A.     We've probably been parking cars, from time to

25   time, on that siding track since 1999.  I don't understand
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 1   your point.

 2        Q.     My questions are not to make a point, but to

 3   elicit facts, sir.  And the fact that I'm trying to elicit

 4   from you is your knowledge of cars being parked on the passing

 5   track, as you refer to it, continuously for the last six

 6   weeks.

 7        A.     I don't -- I told you my answer.

 8        Q.     You've got -- do you have those -- do you have

 9   four tank cars parked across the Center Parkway alignment

10   today?

11        A.     I -- what do you mean by -- what are you

12   insinuating?  I don't know.  I haven't been to Center Parkway

13   today.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Peterson?

15                   THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

16                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  You can just

17   answer you do know or you don't know.

18                   THE WITNESS:  I don't know.

19        Q.     (BY MR. DIJULIO:)  And when you were out there on

20   Sunday, were there any cars parked on the siding?

21        A.     When -- I wasn't out there Sunday, I was out there

22   Saturday.

23        Q.     I'm sorry, Saturday when you were out there, were

24   there any cars parked there Saturday?

25        A.     No.  Would you like to see the video of the
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 1   locomotive going through the center -- the proposed Center

 2   Parkway grade crossing at 20 naught -- 20 miles an hour?  I'll

 3   be happy to give you the videos.  I mean, they were taken

 4   Saturday.  There were no cars, or they would have got hit.

 5        Q.     Okay.  And you don't know what happens to be out

 6   there today, do you?

 7        A.     No, I don't.

 8        Q.     And you don't know what's scheduled to be out

 9   there tomorrow, do you?

10        A.     No.  They're not our cars.  We don't own the cars.

11   They're waiting to get picked up.

12        Q.     So the fact that there have been -- these are not

13   your cars is your testimony, the cars in these photographs --

14        A.     Absolutely not our cars.

15        Q.     -- these tankers?  And they can sit there for days

16   at a time before being picked up?

17        A.     They can sit there for months.  But if you leave

18   them there too long, they get in the way of the operations, so

19   I -- you know, it just doesn't make sense.

20        Q.     Your, also, testimony this morning said that you

21   were all for that project, that loop track development by the

22   City of Richland.  You're a rail guy and you support that.

23               Is that what your testimony was this morning, or

24   just this afternoon?

25        A.     My testimony is we are supportive of economic
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 1   development, railroading, and the part that railroading plays,

 2   absolutely, and our concern is always about safety.

 3        Q.     Handing you what's been marked RVP-6-X.

 4        A.     Thank you.

 5        Q.     You or someone in your -- under your control

 6   caused that be produced?

 7        A.     Yes.

 8        Q.     Is that correct?

 9        A.     Yes.

10        Q.     Richland city council formally considers a new

11   project bringing mile-long trains through Richland at all

12   hours, thousand more train cars.  And your purpose for

13   producing this was to cause the public to object to the

14   proposal between the city and the transfer terminal people?

15        A.     No.

16        Q.     Mr. Peterson, in response to the production

17   request through the UTC process, Tri-City Railway produced

18   RVP-5-X.

19               Are you familiar with those documents, sir?

20        A.     No.  I don't think so.  Better look through them.

21   I don't think so.

22        Q.     Do you know who Lisa Anderson is?

23        A.     Yes.

24        Q.     And who is Lisa Anderson?

25        A.     She's our administrative secretary.
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 1        Q.     And Rhett Peterson is one of your sons?

 2        A.     Yes.

 3        Q.     And you do not recall receiving this e-mail in

 4   September of 2012 from Ms. Anderson regarding a

 5   Benton-Franklin Council of Governments' open house, is that

 6   correct?

 7        A.     You just took my exhibit.  Was I copied on it?

 8   Or it was written to me?  It's written to Paul Petit.  No.

 9        Q.     And you're copied on it, aren't you?

10        A.     I am copied on it.

11        Q.     Okay.

12        A.     Okay.  I got it.  Am I familiar with it?

13   Obviously not very much.  Do you want me to read it?

14        Q.     No.  I'm just asking, are you aware of any

15   activities by Tri-City Railway in the City of Kennewick

16   transportation planning process?

17        A.     Not me.  I personally have not been involved in

18   it.

19        Q.     And do you know of anybody at Tri-City Railway?

20        A.     I think we have had people actually go to a

21   meeting or two.

22        Q.     And how about City of Richland transportation

23   planning?

24        A.     We may have had people go to a City of Richland

25   planning meeting as well.
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 1        Q.     And other than this record, which I recognize

 2   you're not familiar with, in terms of attendance of the

 3   regional Council of Governments transportation planning,

 4   you're not aware of any direct involvement of TCRY, are you?

 5        A.     No.

 6        Q.     Now, handing you Exhibit RVP-7-X.

 7        A.     Okay.

 8        Q.     Do you recognize your signature on that agreement?

 9        A.     It's actually not mine, but I recognize the

10   signature.

11        Q.     Okay.  It is an agreement by TCRY?

12        A.     It is.

13        Q.     And in the fourth recital in this contract, "TCRY

14   recognizes the city or the City of Richland's interest in

15   facilitating well designed urban transportation improvements,

16   including rail, vehicle, and pedestrian facilities."

17               Is that an accurate statement of that recital?

18        A.     Number 4?

19        Q.     Second "whereas" clause.

20        A.     Oh, in the whereas.

21        Q.     Fourth whereas clause.

22        A.     Fourth whereas, yeah.  Yes.

23        Q.     You agree with that statement, don't you?

24        A.     I don't -- yes.

25                   MR. DIJULIO:  That's all I have, Your Honor.
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 1   Thank you.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Does

 3   commission staff have any questions?

 4                   MR. SMITH:  No questions, Your Honor.

 5                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Any Re-Direct

 6   follow up, Mr. Petit?

 7                   MR. PETIT:  Give me just a minute, Your Honor.

 8                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

 9                   MR. PETIT:  I have nothing further, Your

10   Honor.

11   

12   

13                            EXAMINATION

14   

15   BY ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:

16        Q.     Mr. Peterson, were you involved last time the city

17   petitioned in 2004 to open --

18        A.     Yes, sir.

19        Q.     -- this road crossing?

20        A.     Yes, sir.

21        Q.     And did you oppose it at that time?

22        A.     Yes, sir.

23        Q.     And you're opposed to opening the road crossing

24   across the tracks at this time, is that correct?

25        A.     Well, obviously we're somewhat here.  But, you
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 1   know -- you know, there's -- it's not as simple, and, you

 2   know, being in the transportation deal, as there's just not

 3   going to be a train go by that crossing and -- for ten minutes

 4   every once in a while.  You know, that's a -- that passing

 5   track is a very important piece of our railroading.

 6               And as the traffic gets better, which we

 7   encourage, we're all for growing the rail traffic and economic

 8   development and the hundred million dollar projects and so on

 9   and so forth.  And we've gotten a lot of criticism in the last

10   couple weeks here over a flyer and trying to make sure that

11   the folks -- that this whole thing gets vetted because once

12   you put that in, it's in, and it's not coming out.  So is that

13   what everybody really wants up there, because it's going to be

14   lots and lots of rail traffic.

15               So -- and that's good.  Brings economic

16   development.  But -- and that means that passing track is even

17   more important than it was when it was a sleepy little old

18   railroad ten years ago.  And so when that, when the train

19   comes in, those gates are -- if there was a road there, those

20   gates are coming down.

21               And so, you know, we're the first responder, we

22   get all the upset calls, we get the folks, we get the people

23   that drive through the gates, and so on and so forth.  And we

24   -- we deal with them.  So our concern is not that it wouldn't

25   be great to have a road there, and people have testified
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 1   about, you know, pros and cons of what kind of road and

 2   separated and so on and so forth, but just so everybody knows,

 3   that's a big part of railroading, and it's going to become a

 4   bigger part of railroading in the future.

 5               And not only are we looking -- what we need to be

 6   looking for, we'll need to be looking for additional passing

 7   track facility, probably right on the other side of Steptoe

 8   between there and the Yakima bridge, so we can handle passing

 9   of trains, you know, bigger trains and more trains.  So to

10   think that that one's coming out is -- that's a big deal to

11   us.

12        Q.     Let me stop you there.

13        A.     Yes.  I'm sorry.

14        Q.     One of the options we heard about, I think at Mr.

15   Jeffers' testimony yesterday, was the consideration of leaving

16   both tracks and still opening the road.  What's TCRY's

17   opposition if both tracks are left?

18        A.     Okay.  When we're there, those gates are down,

19   we're doing our railroading, we got, you know, we got our two

20   tracks, build the road.  We don't care.

21        Q.     So can you answer my question?

22        A.     Yeah.

23        Q.     Do you oppose putting the road through if the two

24   tracks stayed in place and operations continued as they were

25   now?
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 1        A.     As long as we have good, hundred percent crossing

 2   protection.  You know, our job is to protect our workers

 3   first.

 4        Q.     So if I understand your position correctly, the

 5   opposition is only to the removal of the passing track as a

 6   casualty of putting the road through.

 7        A.     I'm not -- I'm not the attorney.  I don't know

 8   what all the legal issues and so on and so forth.  But from an

 9   operating standpoint --

10        Q.     That's all I'm asking.

11        A.     Operating standpoint, we will continue to operate

12   uninhibited, and there's going to be a lot of, you know, at

13   times, there's going to be a lot of folks sitting, you know.

14        Q.     And that's not the case at the north Steptoe

15   crossing because there's only one track, not the mainline and

16   passing track?

17        A.     Yeah.  Because the passing track comes in well

18   away from the Steptoe crossing and the other crossings, as

19   well, so it's just, they're all just run through.  So -- so

20   the issue is, just so everyone knows, when those -- when work,

21   railroading is being done there, the gates are down, they

22   could be down for a while.  20 minutes.

23               It depends on how long the train is that's on the

24   passing track, because the conductor has to walk -- after he

25   re-aligns the switch, he's got to walk the train back to get
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 1   back on the train.  So if it's a six-car train, won't take so

 2   long.  If it's a 15-car train, takes twice as long.  If it's

 3   25, takes even longer.  So we don't have any issues with that

 4   right now, because there's no road at-grade crossing there.

 5   That's all.

 6        Q.     Are you aware of any state law or regulations that

 7   limit the amount of time a railroad can block a right-of-way?

 8        A.     Yeah, the RCW says -- although the class 1's, you

 9   know -- I mean, we all, as a rail industry, want to not block

10   a crossing more than ten minutes, unless you have to.  So, I

11   mean -- but when you have to, they get blocked longer.  So --

12   I am aware.  Not aware of the exact chapter and verse of it,

13   but generally.

14                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank

15   you, Mr. Peterson.  That's all the questions that I have.

16                   THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Let me see if

18   that raises any additional questions from your legal

19   department.  Mr. Petit?

20   

21   

22   

23   

24   

25   
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 1                        REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 2   

 3   BY MR. PETIT:

 4        Q.     Mr. Peterson, you responded to a question from the

 5   judge in connection with TCRY's opposition to this at-grade

 6   crossing at Center Parkway.  And you made reference to the

 7   removal of passing track.  The design as it was presented did,

 8   in fact, require blockage of and therefore inoperation of the

 9   passing track, correct?

10        A.     Yes.

11        Q.     And if the passing track is -- if that crossing is

12   made so that it goes across both the main track and the

13   passing track, is it your testimony that you see the dangers

14   and the delays at that crossing increase?

15        A.     We have the same objection as we had seven years

16   ago when this petition was made then, and it was -- we thought

17   it was put to bed.  Nobody appealed it, it was over, and then

18   it comes up again, so our objections are the same.

19               You know, it creates more safety issues because

20   you're putting in another at-grade crossing.  So, you know, we

21   don't have to have one, we don't want one, because you have

22   more safety issues, both for our workers and the general

23   public.  But we're -- taking out a passing track is -- is not

24   only -- that's affecting our operation.

25                   MR. PETIT:  That's all I have, Judge.
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 1                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. DiJulio,

 2   anything further?

 3                   MR. DIJULIO:  No, thank you, Judge.

 4                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  For the

 5   state?

 6                   MR. SMITH:  No, Your Honor.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Peterson,

 8   thank you very much for your time.

 9                   THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

10                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  You can step

11   down.

12               Okay.  Counsel, looking at -- we got post witness

13   exhibit housekeeping.  I believe we have Exhibit RVP-1T, the

14   pre-filed testimony, and Mr. DiJulio used at least RVP-5-X,

15   6-X, and 7-X in his cross-examination.  I think that was it

16   for documentary exhibits that were discussed with this

17   witness.  Is that correct?

18                   MR. DIJULIO:  Yes.  From the cities'

19   perspective.

20                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Any objection

21   to admitting those four exhibits at this time?

22                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the city.

23                   MR. PETIT:  None.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

25   So RVP-1T, RVP-5-X, 6-X, and 7-X, are admitted.

0421

 1               Mr. Petit, do you have any other witnesses or

 2   evidence to put on today?

 3                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor.

 4                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Were there

 5   any cases in rebuttal to be presented now that all the three

 6   cases-in-chief have been presented?

 7                   MR. DIJULIO:  If I might have five minutes?

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 9   Let's take a brief recess, come back, and when we do come

10   back, let's discuss any exhibits that were not offered yet and

11   admitted that might be stipulated to for the completion of the

12   record, if necessary.  Because if I haven't admitted them, I'm

13   not going to reread or go into any detail.  So please take

14   your time to make sure any exhibit that you didn't use with a

15   witness, if you wish for me to consider it as evidence or you

16   want to refer to it in your closing briefs, that would get it

17   admitted to the record so it can be properly cited and

18   reviewed.

19               And we'll come back and talk about cases in

20   rebuttal and any other questions as to the remaining schedule,

21   like for post hearing briefs and the rest, after break.  All

22   right.  We're at recess for five or ten minutes.

23                                                  (Short recess).

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

25   Counsel, let's be back on the record.  It's coming up on 4:00.
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 1   It looks like we have three items to inquire about:  Whether

 2   anyone wants to make a presentation of rebuttal; any exhibit

 3   wrap-up we need to do, I'm aware of several; and, three, I

 4   think, we still have a question as to whether or not you would

 5   like me, at some point tomorrow, to drive the route to view

 6   anything that was not already viewed on Google Earth.

 7               So let's start with rebuttal cases.  Does the city

 8   have any further evidence in way of rebuttal.

 9                   MR. DIJULIO:  Yes.  In follow-up to the

10   questions regarding parking on the siding, we will offer a

11   series of photographs Monday through Friday, beginning October

12   3rd, 2013 and extending through Friday, November 15, 2013, and

13   we'll offer those for stipulation in lieu of calling Jeff

14   Peters to authenticate them.

15                   MR. PETIT:  And we will stipulate to their

16   admission, Your Honor.

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And

18   commission staff, any objections there?

19                   MR. SMITH:  No, we'll stipulate as well.

20                   MR. DIJULIO:  And for purposes of the record,

21   we will retain the exhibit, go make record copies for the

22   parties and the commission, and return them by the 6:00

23   hearing.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And was that

25   correct, then, that Mr. Peters is the one who took the
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 1   photographs?

 2                   MR. DIJULIO:  No, but one of his staff did.

 3                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Shall we put

 4   them in in his number of --

 5                   MR. DIJULIO:  That's fine.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Or did you

 7   want to mark them for Mr. Peterson's Cross?  How would you

 8   like that --

 9                   MR. DIJULIO:  That will work just fine.

10                   MR. PETIT:  Which?

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I think to

12   keep them associated with the person they were posed to, we'll

13   use them with Mr. Peterson and put them into that.

14                   MR. DIJULIO:  Mr. Peterson, thank you.

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So we'll mark

16   those as RVP-9-X, the photos of tank cars on the crossing or

17   on the siding.  And how many total pictures, do you think,

18   October 3rd to November?

19                                      (Pause in the proceedings).

20                   MR. DIJULIO:  31.  I don't know why we have 31

21   and not 30.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So

23   it's October 3rd is the first one?

24                   MR. DIJULIO:  From October 3rd, 2013 to

25   November 15th, 2013, Monday through Friday of each of those
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 1   weeks.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank

 3   you.  All right.  Was there any other rebuttal testimony or

 4   evidence from the city?

 5                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the city, thank you.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 7   So RVP-9-X will be admitted subject to it being copied and

 8   distributed to the parties and the number of copies that we

 9   need for the commission.  And my understanding is that might

10   be later tonight, but if it needs to come in by mail after

11   tonight, that'd be fine as well.

12               All right.  Turning to commission staff, any

13   rebuttal evidence.

14                   MR. SMITH:  No, Your Honor.

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And from

16   TCRY?

17                   MR. PETIT:  No, Your Honor.

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

19   Turning to the exhibits that were previously distributed for

20   cross-examination, did the city have any exhibits it

21   identified?  Those would have been for, I think, Gary Norris.

22   There was a GAN-5-X and perhaps a GAN-12-X, a copy of which

23   never was submitted, but at least it was indicated, and

24   perhaps also RVP-8-X.  Those three exhibits were identified

25   and were not used during the hearing.
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 1               Was there an intention to stipulate to their

 2   admission or seek a stipulation, or should I just omit those

 3   from the record?

 4                   MR. DIJULIO:  Working in reverse order,

 5   RVP-8-X, the railroad lease between the Port of Benton and

 6   TCRY would be cumulative.  It's been referred to during the

 7   course of the testimony.  If it -- whether it's worth

 8   anything, we'll offer it to make the record complete.

 9               Counsel, do you want it in there?

10                   MR. PETIT:  I think so, so we stipulate to its

11   admission.

12                   MR. DIJULIO:  No objection.

13                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So we'll

14   stipulate to its admission, RVP 8-X, unless the commission has

15   a concern?

16                   MR. SMITH:  No.

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

18   Working in reverse order back to the Gary Norris exhibit, 5-X

19   and 12-X.

20                   MR. DIJULIO:  Oh, that was a placeholder, and

21   there is no exhibit for that.  That was a placeholder for any

22   record of accidents, and that was addressed in the testimony

23   of Ms. Hunter.

24                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

25                   MR. PETIT:  We're talking about GAN-12-X?
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 1                   MR. DIJULIO:  Correct.

 2                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 3   So I will not -- I'll mark that as not offered or admitted.

 4   And 5-X?  I think it may have been subsumed in some other

 5   exhibits.

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  I think it was, as well.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  So we'll

 8   leave that one out as well.  Were there any other city offered

 9   or identified exhibits?

10                   MR. DIJULIO:  No.  Thank you, Judge.

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  From

12   staff, were there any cross-exam exhibits that were not used

13   or identified during the hearing?

14                   MR. SMITH:  No, Your Honor.

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

16   Turning to Mr. Petit and TCRY?

17                   MR. PETIT:  Yes, Your Honor.

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  There was a

19   long series in the JP sequence, and I'm not sure -- or JP and

20   then JD, I'm not sure how many of those may have been subsumed

21   by later copies, including the city council item from last

22   night.

23                   MR. PETIT:  Your Honor, we're not proposing

24   the admission of any of those JD exhibits except two.

25   Actually, three.
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 1                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

 2                   MR. PETIT:  JD-27-X, which is an aerial view

 3   of the existing passing track from Google Earth; JD-29-X,

 4   which is an aerial view showing the distance from the proposed

 5   crossing to Columbia Center; and JD-30-X, which is an aerial

 6   view showing the distance from the proposed crossing to

 7   Steptoe.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And that

 9   one's already been offered and admitted, 30-X.

10                   MR. PETIT:  30-X, I do not have a record of

11   that.  So we would then move for the admission of 27-X and

12   29-X.

13                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So

14   just those two aerial view shots.

15                   MR. PETIT:  And there's one on the next page.

16   In addition, JD-37-X, which is the video of the Tangent rail

17   presentation to the Richland City Council that Mr. Ballew

18   testified regarding.  And it's my understanding, from

19   discussion with the attorneys for the cities, that they have

20   no objection to the admission of any of these proposed

21   exhibits.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So as

23   to 27-X, 29-X, and 37-X, Mr. DiJulio?

24                   MR. DIJULIO:  No objection.

25                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And Mr.
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 1   Smith?

 2                   MR. SMITH:  No objection.

 3                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So

 4   those three will be admitted.  And the remainder, Mr. Petit,

 5   my understanding is there's no need to offer them or discuss

 6   them further, consider them further?

 7                   MR. PETIT:  That is correct, Your Honor.

 8                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 9   That was the JD series.  Does that same apply to the JP --

10   there were some additional purchase and sale agreements or the

11   -- perhaps even a copy of the other order, which I would take

12   official notice of, in any case.

13                   MR. PETIT:  I have the -- those as admitted,

14   Your Honor.  JP-5-X.

15                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  I'm looking

16   at 8 and 9.

17                   MR. PETIT:  8 and 9.

18                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Those were

19   not offered.

20                   MR. PETIT:  Oh, 8 we do not need, Your Honor.

21   We'll withdraw that one.  And 9, if you're going to take

22   official notice and judicial notice.

23                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, it's a

24   commission document.

25                   MR. PETIT:  Yeah.

0429

 1                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  And certainly

 2   one that's been referred to in this case a number of times.

 3                   MR. PETIT:  Right.  We put it in there in case

 4   we needed to interrogate, and we did not turn out to need to

 5   interrogate.

 6                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  All

 7   right.  Thank you.  Then I think that takes care of our orphan

 8   exhibits.

 9               The last item is the question of the driving tour.

10   Let me start with the city.  What's the city's position on

11   whether I should take a look at anything from the windshield?

12                   MR. DIJULIO:  The city has already submitted a

13   proposed route plan, and we have discussed it with other

14   counsel, and we have no objection to Mr. Petit's additional

15   suggestion that we drive the additional route that Mr. Norris

16   discussed this morning.

17                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Smith, is

18   there any additional items or suggested routes from --

19                   MR. SMITH:  Yes, Your Honor.  We would propose

20   that you drive the mall ring road, which that might be on the

21   directions, but actually, as I understand it, it is an

22   internal road within the mall that people take from the

23   roundabout at Gage right through the mall parking lot.  And

24   there, as I understand it, there are speed bumps there to try

25   to slow down the traffic.
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 1               And also we think it would be worthwhile for you

 2   to take the drive out to Horn Rapids Industrial Park, which

 3   has been the subject of testimony here.  I don't have the

 4   directions handy.  We could get them before the public

 5   hearing, or I'm happy to let you Google them yourself, but we

 6   can do that.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  My only

 8   concern about a site tour that's not documented means that

 9   there's a hole in the record as to exactly what I went off and

10   looked at and whether I would cover all of the bases that the

11   city and the staff and, for that matter, TCRY want me to see.

12   I don't want to overemphasize something or miss something

13   entirely.

14               So I'd much prefer, for the completeness of the

15   record, that I get spoon fed point by point directions of what

16   you want me to drive, with some indication of where I should

17   stop and what I'm viewing.  If that's possible, and I could

18   get it as late as tomorrow morning --

19                   MR. PETIT:  Well, we would propose to get it

20   to you by the close of public comment period tonight, and I

21   think Mr. Smith and I and Mr. DiJulio can work that out.

22                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  If we have

23   something -- I mean, I have the original submission, and I

24   understand the basics of what was there, looking at the fire

25   stations and some of the response routes, and now we're
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 1   talking about adding Mr. Norris's north and through Columbia

 2   Park Trail item.

 3               Quite honestly, much of this has been covered in

 4   the daylight and at night over the last couple days getting

 5   from the hotel to the hearing site, but seeing it in a formal

 6   part of the hearing and making it part of the record is what I

 7   would like to do so there's a full record and one that's, if

 8   there is an appeal, if there's any further process, that folks

 9   can look and see, here's what the judge went out and viewed.

10               I doubt very much I'll be referring or citing to

11   my own stop at any particular intersection, but it's possible

12   the testimony can be questioned or the hearing record could be

13   questioned on appeal to commissioners and submitted with other

14   photographs or other things that -- if there's a point of

15   conflict.  So as long as there's a basis, that's what I'd like

16   for tomorrow.

17               Let me then direct counsel, then, if you will,

18   find a stipulated route.  You can get it to me tonight.  If

19   that doesn't happen for some reason, you can leave it at the

20   front desk and tell me what time I should wait to go tomorrow

21   morning.  I can pick it up when I check out of the Holiday Inn

22   Express.  That would be fine as well.

23               Is there any other business to take care of before

24   we break and come back at six o'clock for any public comment

25   there may be?
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 1                   MR. DIJULIO:  Nothing from the cities, thank

 2   you.

 3                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  The date for

 4   closing briefs, I think, is December the 20th.  I think that's

 5   a Friday.  Is there any need to change that?

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  Speaking for the cities, the

 7   only hesitancy we'd have is the availability of the

 8   transcript.  The court reporter reports that she intends to

 9   have it to us shortly after the Thanksgiving break, which

10   should be sufficient.

11                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  So the

12   post hearing briefs will still be due December 20th on that

13   Friday.  We did not, I think, stipulate to any page

14   limitations, and I want you to have enough room to make your

15   points, but I'm hoping, as we're -- so many interruptions I

16   had today, that we keep it on the main point and the legal

17   basis of what my decision should be, standards to review and

18   that sort of thing, rather than any tangential facts.

19               Those can hopefully be cited to and will be

20   developed in the record and not a long discussion.  Because,

21   quite honestly, I won't read those, I'll skim through them and

22   get to the legal part of the brief.  That's what I'm looking

23   for in the post hearing brief, not a re-recitation of facts in

24   any extensive matter.  So hopefully the citations will simply

25   be to the record as to facts that were laid out, if they need
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 1   to be re-summarized or repackaged to some extent.

 2               I'm not saying you can't do that, I just don't

 3   want you to spend an awful lot of time giving me all the

 4   background again and use up valuable pages and time doing

 5   that.  Any questions on just the general approach to briefs?

 6                   MR. DIJULIO:  None from the city.

 7                   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE TOREM:  There's a

 8   chance, I don't know that it will happen, once I get the

 9   briefs and I read them that following week, that I may send

10   you some bench requests for additional briefing or an answer

11   to a specific question, but it would only be on a direct

12   technical matter, and I may direct it to one party

13   specifically.  Just in thinking of issues that I'm hoping are

14   addressed in the briefs over the next couple of days, I'm just

15   wondering if that may occur in this case.  I haven't done it

16   previously in a rail case.  It does happen quite often in our

17   utility regulation cases, but just so you're not caught

18   unaware.

19               I will try not to give you a deadline of during

20   the holiday period as those questions come up, so hopefully

21   that would be due usually seven to ten business days after I

22   come up with a question and decide it's worth shipping back

23   out to you as parties.  So hopefully that won't happen, but if

24   it does, hopefully it will be very clear as to what it is.

25   And if there's a question, send me back a note asking, "Judge,
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 1   what exactly do you want," so we can get it clear and you're

 2   not wasting time only to have a follow-on of, "No, that wasn't

 3   it."  So if you see a bench request in this case and you don't

 4   understand exactly what it's driving at, please let me know.

 5               All right.  Then nothing else to say on the

 6   matter, it's almost 4:20.  I plan to be back here at 5:45 to

 7   see who's coming for the public comment hearing.  I'm not

 8   anticipating we'll have a full room.  We'll start somewhere

 9   between six and 6:15.  And when the last commenter at that

10   point presents his or her comments, we'll close it.  So it

11   definitely won't be going until 9:00 just because we said

12   we're setting the room aside from six to nine.  All right.

13   We're adjourned.  I'll see you at 5:45 or thereabouts.

14   

15                                                   (4:20 p.m.)

16   

17   

                          *        *         *

18   

19   

20   

21   

22   

23   

24   

25   
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON     )

                             ) ss.

 2   COUNTY OF BENTON        )

 3   

 4              I, Dina Ranger, do hereby certify that at the time

 5   and place heretofore mentioned in the caption of the

 6   above-entitled matter, I was a Certified Shorthand Reporter

 7   for Washington and, pursuant to RCW 5.28.010, am authorized to

 8   administer oaths and affirmations in and for the State of

 9   Washington; that at said time and place I reported in

10   stenotype all testimony adduced and proceedings had in the

11   foregoing matter; that thereafter my notes were reduced to

12   typewriting and that the foregoing transcript consisting of

13   194 typewritten pages is a true and correct transcript of all

14   such testimony adduced and proceedings had and of the whole

15   thereof.

16               Witness my hand at Kennewick, Washington, on this

17   2nd day of December, 2013.

18   

19   

20                       _______________________________

                         Dina Ranger, CSR-RPR

21                       CSR NO. RANGEDK317L3

                         Certified Shorthand Reporter

22                       Notary Public for Washington

23   

24   

25   
